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Up to $2’764’2 18.76 Crowdfunding Simple Agreement for Future Equity
Minimum Target Amount: $10,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.
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Company:

Company: Unbanked, Inc.

Address: 3010 HAVEN RESERVE, ALPHARETTA, GA 30004
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: January 01, 2018

Terms:

Crowdfunding Simple Agreements for Future Equity

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 of Crowdfunding Simple Agreement for Future Equity
Offering Maximum: $2,764,218.76 of Crowdfunding Simple Agreement for Future Equity
Type of Security Offered: Crowdfunding Simple Agreement for Future Equity

Note converts to Class B Common Stock when the company raises
$1,000,000.00 in a qualified equity financing.

Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

Valuation Cap: $115,000,000.00

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Annual Interest Rate: 0%
Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $250.00

Terms of the underlying Security

Underlying Security Name: Class B Common Stock

Voting Rights:
One vote per share.

Material Rights:

<p><em>The amount outstanding includes 65,127,362 shares to be issued to
stock options issued and reserved for issuance.</em></p> <p>Anti-Dilution Rights.
</p> <p>The Company may issue additional shares of Class B Common Stock at a later
date. The issuance of such additional shares of Class B Common Stock would be
dilutive, and could adversely affect the value of the Securities issued pursuant to
Regulation CF.</p>

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Overview

Introducing a new kind of banking experience that empowers everyone to participate
in the financial system—whether they choose to work with a legacy institution, or take
complete control by becoming their own custodian of blockchain-based assets.
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Our platform puts mobile digital banking first; and, with blockchain technology, we
believe we're able to provide a better, cheaper, faster experience. We are taking the
antiquated ACH and Wire payment system that is closed-loop and opening it up to the
blockchain rails—where payments are cheap and fast.

Business Model

Unbanked shares in all fees generated from the users who interact with our platform
either through our card programs, bank accounts, or our white-label partnerships who
pay a licensing fee in addition to the sources below. Typically it is a combination of
factors. While fees help us make money, we want to keep them low—and rather use
economies of scale to make money from our customers. Our philosophy is: a smaller
piece of a bigger pie.

The Company earns the majority of its revenue through the sale of the cryptocurrency
that it created called TERN, which has been rebranded and renamed UNBNK in
connection with the conversion and change from Ternio, LLC to Unbanked, Inc.
UNBNK is a token issued on the Stellar (XLM) platform. The Company also earns
minimal revenue from periodic fees from its BlockCard product. The company
generally engages in many small sales every day and periodically withdraws cash from
its cryptocurrency wallet. Revenues are recognized on these sales when the cash is
transferred from the wallets to the company’s bank accounts, then at the end of each
period cost of goods sold is adjusted based on the company’s actual cryptocurrency
balances.

Corporate Structure

Unbanked, Inc. was initially organized as Ternio LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company on 1/1/2018 and converted to a Delaware C-Corporation on 1/1/2022.

The company has two subsidiaries: (i) Ternio Ltd, a United Kingdom corporation
formed on September 26, 2019 and (ii) Ternio Ireland Limited, an Ireland corporation
formed on July 12 2021. These entities were formed to allow for company operations
in certain regions.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors

Unbanked is often compared to other crypto card companies, but our product is so
much more than that.

Like traditional banks, we offer bank accounts that hold cash and debit cars for
spending; but like crypto companies, we enable those bank accounts to buy and
withdraw crypto, or to use that crypto and spend it on a debit card.

Our long-term vision is more competitive with Revolut or Coinbase, but with a B2B
focus: enabling other companies to have their own crypto-friendly fintech offerings to
their customers, including cards and bank accounts.



Revolut raised $880M at a $33B valuation in July of 2021. Coinbase did a direct listing
on NASDAQ in 2021 at a valuation of $85B. Both are strong in their industry focus, but

each have built walled gardens and do not have the white-label flexibility that
Unbanked has built.

Source for Revolut: http://nanodds.org/cnhs5b/1xqih4/viewtopic.php?id=paradigm-
crypto-valuation

Industry

Cryptocurrency adoption is rapidly increasing (hitting a market cap over $2T dollars in
March 2022 and forecasting 221M users this year), but the market is still in its infancy.
In order to get the next 500M people interacting with crypto, they need tools they're
familiar with—like bank accounts and debit cards.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

Unbanked has raised approximately $3.3M as of October 2022 through Regulation
Crowdfunding (amounts from most recent raise not yet final). Both of our previous
rounds have been oversubscribed.

Roadmap

With a successful raise, we will increase our marketing spend and aggressively grow
our customer base. We will also enter into as many global markets as possible. This
includes EU, LATAM, APAC, EMEA, Canada, and others. Doing it properly means
collaborating with regulators and ensuring we adhere to local laws. We also have an
ambitious roadmap of new products and services we intend to bring to the
marketplace.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: [an Kane
[an Kane's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Co-CEOQ, Director & Co-Founder
Dates of Service: September, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Operations. lan receives $170,000 per year in compensation for
his role with the company.

Name: Daniel Gouldman



Daniel Gouldman's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Co-CEO, Director and Co-Founder
Dates of Service: October, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Operations. Daniel currently receives $170,000 per year in his
role with the company.

Name: Mark Morales

Mark Morales's current primary role is with Mark Morales & Associates. Mark Morales
currently services a variable amount of hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: January, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Sit on the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Mark Morales & Associates
Title: Partner
Dates of Service: January, 2001 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead the firm and represent clients

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the SAFE
should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the

»



Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any SAFE purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering SAFE in the amount of up to in this offering, and may close
on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the
Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if it
cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the
Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages
to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to find other sources
of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital



requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

[t is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.



Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The SAFE that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached to them. This means
that you will have no rights in dictating on how the Company will be run. You are
trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will grow
your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will
only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our
company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FCC (Federal Communications Commission), SEC (Securities and Exchange
Commission), FTC (Federal Trade Commission) and other relevant government laws
and regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the selling of product may be
subject to change and if they do then the selling of product may no longer be in the
best interest of the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to sell
product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their



performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on Unbanked or in its computer systems could reduce
the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of investors and companies
interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-party technology provider
to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions of services or cyber-
attacks either on our technology provider or on Unbanked could harm our reputation
and materially negatively impact our financial condition and business.

The prices of blockchain assets are extremely volatile. Fluctuations in the price of
digital assets could materially and adversely affect our business, and the Tokens may
also be subject to significant price volatility

A decrease in the price of a single blockchain asset may cause volatility in the entire
blockchain asset industry and may affect other blockchain assets including the
Tokens. For example, a security breach that affects investor or user confidence in
Bitcoin may also cause the price of the Tokens and other blockchain assets to
fluctuate.

The Company’s activities may require it to obtain government licenses.

The Company’s BlockCard business may constitute broker dealer activity which would
require it to obtain licenses from the government which may be difficult to obtain.
The Company’s activities could open it to being classified as a Money Service
Business. Money services businesses are governed by local regulators and must adhere
with recordkeeping and due diligence requirements. Such requirements could be very
costly to the Company. Failure to obtain licenses or comply with local regulators could
open the Company to liability and disrupt business operations.

Cryptocurrency Risks.

Cryptocurrency is a digital representation of value, which can serve as a method of
exchange. Cryptocurrencies may be traded for USD or other currencies, but most
cryptocurrencies are not supported or backed by any government or bank.
Cryptocurrency values are driven solely by supply and demand, and the cryptocurrency
markets have been historically highly volatile. There is substantial economic,
technical, and societal risk in the cryptocurrency industry. You should conduct
extensive research into the cryptocurrency industry before investing. The specific
features, functions, operations, characteristics, and use of each cryptocurrency may
vary and is likely complex and technical. The Company is subject to the risks of
various cryptocurrencies and various cryptocurrency markets. You should understand
the cryptocurrency market before investing.

Token Risks.

The tokens may be subject to security weakness, hackers, or theft and may
malfunction or function in an unexpected manner. In addition to the risks listed
above, there may be risks regarding the Tokens that are not foreseen or fully



appreciated by the management.

New regulations may materially adversely affect the development and adoption of the
tokens.

Regulations of cryptocurrencies, blockchain technologies, and cryptocurrencies are
currently underdeveloped and likely to rapidly evolve. Legislative and executive
bodies may adopt laws and regulations that could impact the development and growth
of Company.

The amount of capital the Company is attempting to raise in this Offering may not be
enough to sustain the Company’s current business plan.

In order to achieve the Company’s near and long-term goals, the Company may need
to procure funds in addition to the amount raised in the Offering. There is no
guarantee the Company will be able to raise such funds on acceptable terms or at all.
If we are not able to raise sufficient capital in the future, we may not be able to
execute our business plan, our continued operations will be in jeopardy and we may
be forced to cease operations and sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of
our remaining assets, which could cause an Investor to lose all or a portion of their
investment.

We may face potential difficulties in obtaining capital.

We may have difficulty raising needed capital in the future as a result of, among other
factors, the inherent business risks associated with our Company and present and
future market conditions. Our future sources of revenue may not be sufficient to meet
our future capital requirements. We will require additional funds to execute our
business strategy and conduct our operations. If adequate funds are unavailable, we
may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our
research, development or commercialization programs, product launches or
marketing efforts, any of which may materially harm our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We may not have enough authorized capital stock to issue shares of common stock to
investors upon the conversion of any security convertible into shares of our common
stock, including the Securities.

Currently, our authorized capital stock consists of 265,217,402 shares, consisting of
three classes, of which 200,000,040 shares are issued and outstanding. Unless we
increase our authorized capital stock, we may not have enough authorized common
stock to be able to obtain funding by issuing shares of our common stock or securities
convertible into shares of our common stock. We may also not have enough
authorized capital stock to issue shares of common stock to investors upon the
conversion of any security convertible into shares of our common stock, including the
Securities.

We may implement new lines of business or offer new products and services within
existing lines of business.

As an early-stage company, we may implement new lines of business at any time.
There are substantial risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly



in instances where the markets are not fully developed. In developing and marketing
new lines of business and/or new products and services, we may invest significant
time and resources. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new
lines of business and/or new products or services may not be achieved, and price and
profitability targets may not prove feasible. We may not be successful in introducing
new products and services in response to industry trends or developments in
technology, or those new products may not achieve market acceptance. As a result, we
could lose business, be forced to price products and services on less advantageous
terms to retain or attract clients or be subject to cost increases. As a result, our
business, financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected.

We rely on other companies to provide services for our products.

We depend on third party vendors to meet our contractual obligations to our
customers and conduct our operations. Our ability to meet our obligations to our
customers may be adversely affected if vendors do not provide the agreedupon
services in compliance with customer requirements and in a timely and cost-effective
manner. Likewise, the quality of our services may be adversely impacted if companies
to whom we delegate certain services do not perform to our, and our customers’,
expectations. Our vendors may also be unable to quickly recover from natural
disasters and other events beyond their control and may be subject to additional risks
such as financial problems that limit their ability to conduct their operations. The risk
of these adverse effects may be greater in circumstances where we rely on only one or
two vendors for a particular service.

We rely on various intellectual property rights, including licenses, in order to operate
our business.

The Company relies on certain intellectual property rights to operate its business. The
Company’s intellectual property rights may not be sufficiently broad or otherwise may
not provide us a significant competitive advantage. In addition, the steps that we have
taken to maintain and protect our intellectual property may not prevent it from being
challenged, invalidated, circumvented or designed-around, particularly in countries
where intellectual property rights are not highly developed or protected. In some
circumstances, enforcement may not be available to us because an infringer has a
dominant intellectual property position or for other business reasons, or countries
may require compulsory licensing of our intellectual property. Our failure to obtain or
maintain intellectual property rights that convey competitive advantage, adequately
protect our intellectual property or detect or prevent circumvention or unauthorized
use of such property, could adversely impact our competitive position and results of
operations. We also rely on nondisclosure and noncompetition agreements with
employees, consultants and other parties to protect, in part, trade secrets and other
proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that these agreements will adequately
protect our trade secrets and other proprietary rights and will not be breached, that we
will have adequate remedies for any breach, that others will not independently
develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or that third parties will not
otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or other proprietary rights. As we expand
our business, protecting our intellectual property will become increasingly important.
The protective steps we have taken may be inadequate to deter our competitors from



using our proprietary information. In order to protect or enforce our intellectual
property rights, we may be required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as
infringement lawsuits. Also, these third parties may assert claims against us with or
without provocation. These lawsuits could be expensive, take significant time and
could divert management’s attention from other business concerns. The law relating
to the scope and validity of claims in the technology field in which we operate is still
evolving and, consequently, intellectual property positions in our industry are
generally uncertain. We cannot assure you that we will prevail in any of these
potential suits or that the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, would be
commercially valuable.

The Company’s success depends on the experience and skill of its executive officers,
its board of directors, and key employees.

We are dependent on our executive officers, board of directors and key employees.
These persons may not devote their full time and attention to the matters of the
Company. The loss of any or all of our executive officers, board of directors and key
employees could harm the Company's business, financial condition, cash flow and
results of operations.

Although dependent on certain key personnel, the Company does not have any key
person life insurance policies on any such people.

We are dependent on certain key personnel in order to conduct our operations and
execute our business plan, however, the Company has not purchased any insurance
policies with respect to those individuals in the event of their death or disability.
Therefore, if any of these personnel die or become disabled, the Company will not
receive any compensation to assist with such person’s absence. The loss of such
person could negatively affect the Company and our operations. We have no way to
guarantee key personnel will stay with the Company, as many states do not enforce
noncompetition agreements, and therefore acquiring key man insurance will not
ameliorate all of the risk of relying on key personnel.

In order for the Company to compete and grow, it must attract, recruit, retain and
develop the necessary personnel who have the needed experience.

Recruiting and retaining highly qualified personnel is critical to our success. These
demands may require us to hire additional personnel and will require our existing
management and other personnel to develop additional expertise. We face intense
competition for personnel, making recruitment time-consuming and expensive. The
failure to attract and retain personnel or to develop such expertise could delay or halt
the development and commercialization of our product candidates. If we experience
difficulties in hiring and retaining personnel in key positions, we could suffer from
delays in product development, loss of customers and sales and diversion of
management resources, which could adversely affect operating results. Our
consultants and advisors may be employed by third parties and may have
commitments under consulting or advisory contracts with third parties that may limit
their availability to us, which could further delay or disrupt our product development
and growth plans.



We need to rapidly and successfully develop and introduce new products in a
competitive, demanding and rapidly changing environment

To succeed in our intensely competitive industry, we must continually improve,
refresh and expand our product and service offerings to include newer features,
functionality or solutions, and keep pace with changes in the industry. Shortened
product life cycles due to changing customer demands and competitive pressures may
impact the pace at which we must introduce new products or implement new
functions or solutions. In addition, bringing new products or solutions to the market
entails a costly and lengthy process, and requires us to accurately anticipate changing
customer needs and trends. We must continue to respond to changing market
demands and trends or our business operations may be adversely affected. We must
also anticipate and respond to customer demands regarding the compatibility of our
current and prior offerings. These demands could hinder the pace of introducing and
implementing new technology. Our future results may be affected if our products
cannot effectively interface and perform well with software products of other
companies and with our customers’ existing IT infrastructures, or if we are
unsuccessful in our efforts to enter into agreements allowing integration of third-
party technology with our database and software platforms. Our efforts to develop the
interoperability of our products may require significant investments of capital and
employee resources. In addition, many of our principal products are used with
products offered by third parties and, in the future, some vendors of non-Company
products may become less willing to provide us with access to their products,
technical information and marketing and sales support. As a result of these and other
factors, our ability to introduce new or improved solutions could be adversely
impacted and our business would be negatively affected.

The development and commercialization of our products is highly competitive.

We face competition with respect to any products that we may seek to develop or
commercialize in the future. Our competitors include major companies worldwide.
Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and human
resources than we have and superior expertise in research and development and
marketing approved products and thus may be better equipped than us to develop and
commercialize products. These competitors also compete with us in recruiting and
retaining qualified personnel and acquiring technologies. Smaller or early stage
companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through
collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. Accordingly, our
competitors may commercialize products more rapidly or effectively than we are able
to, which would adversely affect our competitive position, the likelihood that our
products will achieve initial market acceptance, and our ability to generate meaningful
additional revenues from our products.

Industry consolidation may result in increased competition, which could result in a
loss of customers or a reduction in revenue.

Some of our competitors have made or may make acquisitions or may enter into
partnerships or other strategic relationships to offer more comprehensive services
than they individually had offered or achieve greater economies of scale. In addition,
new entrants not currently considered to be competitors may enter our market



through acquisitions, partnerships or strategic relationships. We expect these trends
to continue as companies attempt to strengthen or maintain their market positions.
The potential entrants may have competitive advantages over us, such as greater
name recognition, longer operating histories, more varied services and larger
marketing budgets, as well as greater financial, technical and other resources. The
companies resulting from combinations or that expand or vertically integrate their
business to include the market that we address may create more compelling service
offerings and may offer greater pricing flexibility than we can or may engage in
business practices that make it more difficult for us to compete effectively, including
on the basis of price, sales and marketing programs, technology or service
functionality. These pressures could result in a substantial loss of our customers or a
reduction in our revenue.

Damage to our reputation could negatively impact our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Our reputation and the quality of our brand are critical to our business and success in
existing markets and will be critical to our success as we enter new markets. Any
incident that erodes consumer loyalty for our brand could significantly reduce its
value and damage our business. We may be adversely affected by any negative
publicity, regardless of its accuracy. Also, there has been a marked increase in the use
of social media platforms and similar devices, including blogs, social media websites
and other forms of internet-based communications that provide individuals with
access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested persons. The availability
of information on social media platforms is virtually immediate as is its impact.
Information posted may be adverse to our interests or may be inaccurate, each of
which may harm our performance, prospects or business. The harm may be immediate
and may disseminate rapidly and broadly, without affording us an opportunity for
redress or correction.

Our business could be negatively impacted by cyber security threats, attacks and other
disruptions.

We may face advanced and persistent attacks on our information infrastructure where
we manage and store various proprietary information and sensitive/confidential data
relating to our operations. These attacks may include sophisticated malware (viruses,
worms, and other malicious software programs) and phishing emails that attack our
products or otherwise exploit any security vulnerabilities. These intrusions sometimes
may be zero-day malware that are difficult to identify because they are not included in
the signature set of commercially available antivirus scanning programs. Experienced
computer programmers and hackers may be able to penetrate our network security
and misappropriate or compromise our confidential information or that of our
customers or other third-parties, create system disruptions, or cause shutdowns.
Additionally, sophisticated software and applications that we produce or procure from
third-parties may contain defects in design or manufacture, including “bugs” and
other problems that could unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the
information infrastructure. A disruption, infiltration or failure of our information
infrastructure systems or any of our data centers as a result of software or hardware
malfunctions, computer viruses, cyber-attacks, employee theft or misuse, power



disruptions, natural disasters or accidents could cause breaches of data security, loss
of critical data and performance delays, which in turn could adversely affect our
business.

The use of individually identifiable data by our business, our business associates and
third parties is regulated at the state, federal and international levels.

The regulation of individual data is changing rapidly, and in unpredictable ways. A
change in regulation could adversely affect our business, including causing our
business model to no longer be viable. Costs associated with information security -
such as investment in technology, the costs of compliance with consumer protection
laws and costs resulting from consumer fraud - could cause our business and results
of operations to suffer materially. Additionally, the success of our online operations
depends upon the secure transmission of confidential information over public
networks, including the use of cashless payments. The intentional or negligent actions
of employees, business associates or third parties may undermine our security
measures. As a result, unauthorized parties may obtain access to our data systems and
misappropriate confidential data. There can be no assurance that advances in
computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other
developments will prevent the compromise of our customer transaction processing
capabilities and personal data. If any such compromise of our security or the security
of information residing with our business associates or third parties were to occur, it
could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, operating results and financial
condition. Any compromise of our data security may materially increase the costs we
incur to protect against such breaches and could subject us to additional legal risk.

The Company is not subject to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and may lack the financial
controls and procedures of public companies

The Company may not have the internal control infrastructure that would meet the
standards of a public company, including the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act
of 2002. As a privately-held (non-public) Company, the Company is currently not
subject to the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, and its financial and disclosure controls and
procedures reflect its status as a development stage, non-public company. There can
be no guarantee that there are no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in
the quality of the Company's financial and disclosure controls and procedures. If it
were necessary to implement such financial and disclosure controls and procedures,
the cost to the Company of such compliance could be substantial and could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations.

Changes in federal, state or local laws and government regulation could adversely
impact our business.

The Company is subject to legislation and regulation at the federal and local levels
and, in some instances, at the state level. New laws and regulations may impose new
and significant disclosure obligations and other operational, marketing and
compliance-related obligations and requirements, which may lead to additional costs,
risks of noncompliance, and diversion of our management's time and attention from
strategic initiatives. Additionally, federal, state and local legislators or regulators may
change current laws or regulations which could adversely impact our business.



Further, court actions or regulatory proceedings could also change our rights and
obligations under applicable federal, state and local laws, which cannot be predicted.
Modifications to existing requirements or imposition of new requirements or
limitations could have an adverse impact on our business.

We operate in a highly regulated environment, and if we are found to be in violation
of any of the federal, state, or local laws or regulations applicable to us, our business
could suffer.

We are also subject to a wide range of federal, state, and local laws and regulations.
The violation of these or future requirements or laws and regulations could result in
administrative, civil, or criminal sanctions against us, which may include fines, a cease
and desist order against the subject operations or even revocation or suspension of
our license to operate the subject business. As a result, we may incur capital and
operating expenditures and other costs to comply with these requirements and laws
and regulations.

Changes in employment laws or regulation could harm our performance.

Various federal and state labor laws govern our relationship with our employees and
affect operating costs. These laws include minimum wage requirements, overtime pay,
healthcare reform and the implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act, unemployment tax rates, workers’ compensation rates, citizenship
requirements, union membership and sales taxes. A number of factors could adversely
affect our operating results, including additional government- imposed increases in
minimum wages, overtime pay, paid leaves of absence and mandated health benefits,
mandated training for employees, increased tax reporting and tax payment
requirements for employees who receive tips, a reduction in the number of states that
allow tips to be credited toward minimum wage requirements, changing regulations
from the National Labor Relations Board and increased employee litigation including
claims relating to the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Global crises, such as COVID-19, can have a significant effect on our business
operations and revenue projections.

A significant outbreak of contagious diseases, such as COVID-19, in the human
population could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely affect the
economies and financial markets of many countries, including the United States where
we principally operate, resulting in an economic downturn that could reduce the
demand for our products and services and impair our business prospects, including as
a result of being unable to raise additional capital on acceptable terms to us, if at all

State and federal securities laws are complex, and the Company could potentially be
found to have not complied with all relevant state and federal securities law in prior
offerings of securities.

The Company has conducted previous offerings of securities and may not have
complied with all relevant state and federal securities laws. If a court or regulatory
body with the required jurisdiction ever concluded that the Company may have
violated state or federal securities laws, any such violation could result in the
Company being required to offer rescission rights to investors in such offering. If such



investors exercised their rescission rights, the Company would have to pay to such
investors an amount of funds equal to the purchase price paid by such investors plus
interest from the date of any such purchase. No assurances can be given the Company
will, if it is required to offer such investors a rescission right, have sufficient funds to
pay the prior investors the amounts required or that proceeds from this Offering
would not be used to pay such amounts. In addition, if the Company violated federal
or state securities laws in connection with a prior offering and/or sale of its securities,
federal or state regulators could bring an enforcement, regulatory and/or other legal
action against the Company which, among other things, could result in the Company
having to pay substantial fines and be prohibited from selling securities in the future.

The Company's management may have broad discretion in how the Company uses the
net proceeds of the Offering.

Unless the Company has agreed to a specific use of the proceeds from the Offering, the
Company’s management will have considerable discretion over the use of proceeds
from the Offering. You may not have the opportunity, as part of your investment
decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately.

The Company has the right to extend the Offering Deadline.

The Company may extend the Offering Deadline beyond what is currently stated
herein. This means that your investment may continue to be held in escrow while the
Company attempts to raise the Target Offering Amount even after the Offering
Deadline stated herein is reached. While you have the right to cancel your investment
in the event the Company extends the Offering Deadline, if you choose to reconfirm
your investment, your investment will not be accruing interest during this time and
will simply be held until such time as the new Offering Deadline is reached without
the Company receiving the Target Offering Amount, at which time it will be returned
to you without interest or deduction, or the Company receives the Target Offering
Amount, at which time it will be released to the Company to be used as set forth
herein. Upon or shortly after the release of such funds to the Company, the Securities
will be issued and distributed to you.

The Company may also end the Offering early.

If the Target Offering Amount is met after 21 calendar days, but before the Offering
Deadline, the Company can end the Offering by providing notice to Investors at least 5
business days prior to the end of the Offering. This means your failure to participate in
the Offering in a timely manner, may prevent you from being able to invest in this
Offering - it also means the Company may limit the amount of capital it can raise
during the Offering by ending the Offering early.

The regulatory regime governing the blockchain technologies and tokens is uncertain,
and new regulations or policies may materially adversely affect Unbanked issuance of
NFT Tokens and other blockchain assets.

Regulation of tokens, such as NFTs, and blockchain technologies currently is
undeveloped and likely to rapidly evolve, varies significantly among international,
federal, state and local jurisdictions and is subject to significant uncertainty. Various
legislative and executive bodies in the United States and in other countries may in the



future, adopt laws, regulations, guidance, or other actions, which may severely impact
the Company. Failure by the Company to comply with any laws, rules and regulations,
some of which may not exist yet or are subject to interpretation and may be subject to
change, could result in a variety of adverse consequences, including civil penalties and
fines, all of which may affect the operations of the Company and thus the Company’s
NFTs and other digital assets issued by the Company.

CFCT Regulatory risks related to minting of NFTSs.

Although regulators so far have not provided official guidance about NFTs, it is
possible that an NFT could be considered a "commodity” under the Commodity
Exchange Act ("CEA"), which defines the term to include several enumerated items
and a catch-all for "all other goods and articles.”" The Commodity Futures Trading
Commission ("CFTC") has also stated that the "commodity” definition includes
cryptocurrencies, like Bitcoin and Ether, as well as renewable energy credits, emission
allowances, and other intangible items. NFTs share some similarities with
cryptocurrencies in the sense that they too are purchased, sold, and held using
blockchain technology. Therefore, there is a risk that Unbanked may be subject to
legal compliance or violations of the CEA if the CFTC determines that Unbanked
NFT’s are commodities.

SEC Regulatory risks related to minting of NFTs.

The SEC has defined a digital asset as “an asset that is issued and transferred using
distributed ledger or blockchain technology” which includes a NFT. Though the
security laws in the United States do not explicitly define digital assets, these may be
deemed “digital asset securities” in certain circumstances, and therefore, the SEC may
determine or find that Unbanked’s NFTs were securities under federal securities laws.
Though, Unbanked provides that their NFT should not be deemed a security as
Unbanked NFTs were presented as a collectible with a public assurance of authenticity
on the decentralized ledger and were not marketed as an asset that will give a “return
on investment” due to efforts of others, however, if the SEC determines that
Unbanked NFTs were designed to provide an expectation of profit to the buyer based
on the efforts of others and were marketed as such by Unbanked, then Unbanked may
be subject to regulatory actions.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of Security
Stockholder Name Securities Owned Ywned Percentage
Gra§sroots Impact, LLC (Daniel & 98,591,400 Class B Common
Sheila Gouldman) Stock 50.0%
Grassroots Impact, LLC (Daniel & 20 Class A °°
Sheila Gouldman) Common Stock
lan Kane 98,591,400 gt'ziiB Common
Claseh 50.0%
ass
a0 Rane & Common Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, Crowd
SAFE 2020, Crowd SAFE 2022, Crowd SAFE 2019, StartEngine Crowdfunding SAFE (this
offering), and Series A Preferred Stock.

Class A Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 40 with a total of 40 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share.
Material Rights

Anti-Diulution Rights.

The Company may issue additional shares of Class A Common Stock at a later date.
The issuance of such additional shares of Class A Common Stock would be dilutive,

and could adversely affect the value of the Securities issued pursuant to Regulation
CF.

Class B Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 260,400,162 with a total of 260,400,162
outstanding.

Voting Rights



One vote per share.
Material Rights

The amount outstanding includes 65,127,362 shares to be issued to stock options
issued and reserved for issuance.

Anti-Dilution Rights.

The Company may issue additional shares of Class B Common Stock at a later date.
The issuance of such additional shares of Class B Common Stock would be dilutive,
and could adversely affect the value of the Securities issued pursuant to Regulation
CF.

Crowd SAFE 2020

The security will convert into Cf shadow series securities and the terms of the Crowd
SAFE 2020 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,070,000.00

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $15,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing (see below)

Material Rights
Conversion

Upon each future equity financing of greater than $1,000,000.00 (an "Equity
Financing"), the Securities are convertible at the option of the Company, into CF
Shadow Series Securities, which are securities identical to those issued in such future
Equity Financing except 1) they do not have the right to vote on any matters except as
required by law, 2) they must vote in accordance with the majority of the investors in
such future Equity Financing with respect to any such required vote and 3) they are
not entitled to any inspection or information rights (other than those contemplated
by Regulation CF). The Company has no obligation to convert the Securities in any
future financing.

Conversion Upon the First Equity Financing

If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon the first Equity Financing
following the issuance of the Securities, the Investor will receive the number of CF
Shadow Series Securities equal to the greater of the quotient obtained by dividing the
amount the Investor paid for the Securities (the "Purchase Amount”) by:

(a) the quotient of $15,000,000.00 divided by the aggregate number of issued and
outstanding shares of capital stock, assuming full conversion or exercise of all
convertible and exercisable Securities then outstanding, including shares of
convertible preferred stock and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants



to purchase capital stock, but excluding (i) the issuance of all shares of capital stock
reserved and available for future issuance under any of the Company’s existing equity
incentive plans, (ii) convertible promissory notes issued by the Company, (iii) any
Simple Agreements for Future Equity, including the Securities (collectively, "Safes™),
and (iv) any equity Securities that are issuable upon conversion of any outstanding
convertible promissory notes or Safes,

OR

(b) the lowest price per share of the Securities sold in such Equity Financing multiplied
by 80.00%.The price (either (a) or (b)) determined immediately above shall be deemed
the "First Financing Price” and may be used to establish the conversion price of the
Securities at a later date, even if the Company does not choose to convert the
Securities upon the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Securities.

Conversion After the First Equity Financing

If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon an Equity Financing after the
first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Securities, the Investor will receive
the number of CF Shadow Series Securities equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
(a) the Purchase Amount by (b) the First Financing Price. Conversion Upon a Liquidity
Event Prior to an Equity Financing . In the case of an initial public offering of the
Company ("IPO") or Change of Control (see below) (either of these events, a "Liquidity
Event”) of the Company prior to any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the
option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount
(subject to the following paragraph) or (ii) a number of shares of common stock of the
Company equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the quotient of (a) $15,000,000.00
divided by (b) the number, as of immediately prior to the Liquidity 28 Event, of shares
of the Company’s capital stock (on an as-converted basis) outstanding, assuming
exercise or conversion of all outstanding vested and unvested options, warrants and
other convertible securities, but excluding: (i) shares of common stock reserved and
available for future grant under any equity incentive or similar plan; (ii) any Safes;
and (iii) convertible promissory notes. In connection with a cash payment described in
the preceding paragraph, the Purchase Amount will be due and payable by the
Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation
of the Liquidity Event. If there are not enough funds to pay the Investors and holders
of other Safes (collectively, the "Cash-Out Investors”) in full, then all of the
Company’s available funds will be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among
the Cash-Out Investors in proportion to their Purchase Amounts. "Change of Control”
as used above and throughout this section, means (i) a transaction or transactions in
which any person or group becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the
outstanding voting securities entitled to elect the Company’s board of directors,

(ii) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company, in which the
outstanding voting security holders of the Company fail to retain at least a majority of
such voting securities following such transaction(s) or (iii) a sale, lease or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.



Conversion Upon a Liquidity Event Following an Equity Financing.

In the case of a Liquidity Event following any Equity Financing, the Investor will
receive, at the option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment equal to the Purchase
Amount (as described above) or (ii) a number of shares of the most recently issued
preferred stock equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the First Financing Price.
Shares of preferred stock granted in connection therewith shall have the same
liquidation rights and preferences as the shares of preferred stock issued in connection
with the Company’s most recent Equity Financing.

Crowd SAFE 2022

The security will convert into Cf shadow series and the terms of the Crowd SAFE 2022
are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,235,781.24

Maturity Date: September 04, 2022

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $115,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing (see below)

Material Rights
Conversion

Upon each future equity financing of greater than $1,000,000.00 (an "Equity
Financing"), the Securities are convertible at the option of the Company, into CF
Shadow Series Securities, which are securities identical to those issued in such future
Equity Financing except 1) they do not have the right to vote on any matters except as
required by law, 2) they must vote in accordance with the majority of the investors in
such future Equity Financing with respect to any such required vote and 3) they are
not entitled to any inspection or information rights (other than those contemplated
by Regulation CF). The Company has no obligation to convert the Securities in any
future financing.

Conversion Upon the First Equity Financing

If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon the first Equity Financing
following the issuance of the Securities, the Investor will receive the number of CF
Shadow Series Securities equal to the greater of the quotient obtained by dividing the
amount the Investor paid for the Securities (the "Purchase Amount”) by:

(a) the quotient of $115,000,000.00 divided by the aggregate number of issued and
outstanding shares of capital stock, assuming full conversion or exercise of all
convertible and exercisable Securities then outstanding, including shares of
convertible preferred stock and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants
to purchase capital stock, but excluding (i) the issuance of all shares of capital stock
reserved and available for future issuance under any of the Company’s existing equity



incentive plans, (ii) convertible promissory notes issued by the Company, (iii) any
Simple Agreements for Future Equity, including the Securities (collectively, "Safes”),
and (iv) any equity Securities that are issuable upon conversion of any outstanding
convertible promissory notes or Safes,

OR

(b) the lowest price per share of the Securities sold in such Equity Financing multiplied
by 80.00%.The price (either (a) or (b)) determined immediately above shall be deemed
the "First Financing Price” and may be used to establish the conversion price of the
Securities at a later date, even if the Company does not choose to convert the
Securities upon the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Securities.

Conversion After the First Equity Financing

If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon an Equity Financing after the
first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Securities, the Investor will receive
the number of CF Shadow Series Securities equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
(a) the Purchase Amount by (b) the First Financing Price. Conversion Upon a Liquidity
Event Prior to an Equity Financing . In the case of an initial public offering of the
Company ("IPO") or Change of Control (see below) (either of these events, a "Liquidity
Event”) of the Company prior to any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the
option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount
(subject to the following paragraph) or (ii) a number of shares of common stock of the
Company equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the quotient of (a) $15,000,000.00
divided by (b) the number, as of immediately prior to the Liquidity 28 Event, of shares
of the Company’s capital stock (on an as-converted basis) outstanding, assuming
exercise or conversion of all outstanding vested and unvested options, warrants and
other convertible securities, but excluding: (i) shares of common stock reserved and
available for future grant under any equity incentive or similar plan; (ii) any Safes;
and (iii) convertible promissory notes. In connection with a cash payment described in
the preceding paragraph, the Purchase Amount will be due and payable by the
Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation
of the Liquidity Event. If there are not enough funds to pay the Investors and holders
of other Safes (collectively, the "Cash-Out Investors”) in full, then all of the
Company’s available funds will be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among
the Cash-Out Investors in proportion to their Purchase Amounts. "Change of Control”
as used above and throughout this section, means (i) a transaction or transactions in
which any person or group becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the
outstanding voting securities entitled to elect the Company’s board of directors,

(ii) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company, in which the
outstanding voting security holders of the Company fail to retain at least a majority of
such voting securities following such transaction(s) or (iii) a sale, lease or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company. Conversion Upon a
Liquidity Event Following an Equity Financing

In the case of a Liquidity Event following any Equity Financing, the Investor will



receive, at the option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment equal to the Purchase
Amount (as described above) or (ii) a number of shares of the most recently issued
preferred stock equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the First Financing Price.
Shares of preferred stock granted in connection therewith shall have the same
liquidation rights and preferences as the shares of preferred stock issued in connection
with the Company’s most recent Equity Financing.

Crowd SAFE 2019

The security will convert into Equity (see below) and the terms of the Crowd SAFE
2019 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $25,000.00

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $15,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing or Liquidity Event

Material Rights
(a) Equity Financing.

(i) If an Equity Financing occurs before this instrument terminates in accordance with
Sections 1(b)-(d) (“First Equity Financing”), the Company shall notify the Investor of
the closing of the First Equity Financing and of the Company’s discretionary decision
to either (1) continue the term of this Crowd SAFE without converting the Purchase
Amount to Capital Stock; or (2) issue to the Investor a number of units of the CF
Shadow Series of the Capital Stock (whether Preferred Securities or another class
issued by the Company), as applicable, sold in the First Equity Financing. The number
of shares of the CF Shadow Series of such Capital Stock shall equal the quotient
obtained by dividing (x) the Purchase Amount by (y) the applicable Conversion Price
(such applicable Conversion Price, the “First Equity Financing Price”).

(ii) If the Company elects to continue the term of this Crowd SAFE past the First
Equity Financing and another Equity Financing occurs before the termination of this
Crowd SAFE in accordance with Sections 1(b)-(d) (each, a “Subsequent Equity
Financing”), the Company shall notify the Investor of the closing of the Subsequent
Equity Financing and of the Company’s discretionary decision to either (1) continue
the term of this Crowd SAFE without converting the Investor’s Purchase Amount to
Capital Stock; or (2) issue to the Investor a number of shares of the CF Shadow Series
of Preferred Stock sold in the Subsequent Equity Financing. The number of shares of
the CF Shadow Series of the Capital Stock (whether Preferred Securities or another
class issued by the Company) shall equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the
Purchase Amount by (y) the First Equity Financing Price.

(b) Liquidity Event.

(i) If there is a Liquidity Event before the termination of this instrument and before



any Equity Financing, the Investor will, at its option, either (i) receive a cash payment
equal to the Purchase Amount (subject to the following paragraph) or (ii)
automatically receive from the Company a number of shares of Common Stock equal
to the Purchase Amount divided by the Liquidity Price, if the Investor fails to select
the cash option. In connection with this Section 1(b)(i), the Purchase Amount will be
due and payable by the Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent
with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event. If there are not enough funds to pay
the Investor and holders of other Crowd SAFEs (collectively, the “Cash-Out
Investors”) in full, then all of the Company’s available funds will be distributed with
equal priority and pro rata among the Cash-Out Investors in proportion to their
Purchase Amounts.

(ii) If there is a Liquidity Event after one or more Equity Financings have occurred but
before the termination of this instrument, the Investor will, at its option, either (i)
receive a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount (as described in the foregoing
paragraph) or (ii) automatically receive from the Company a number of units of the
most recent issued Capital Stock (whether Preferred Securities or another class issued
by the Company) equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the First Equity Financing
Price, if the Investor fails to select the cash option. Shares of Capital Stock granted in
connection therewith shall have the same liquidation rights and preferences as the
shares of Capital Stock issued in connection with the Company’s most recent Equity
Financing.

(c) Dissolution Event. If there is a Dissolution Event before this instrument terminates
in accordance with Sections 1(a) or 1(b), subject to the preferences applicable to any
series of Preferred Securities, the Company will distribute its entire assets legally
available for distribution with equal priority among the (i) Investors (on an as
converted basis based on a valuation of Common Securities as determined in good
faith by the Company’s board of directors at the time of Dissolution Event), (ii) all
other holders of instruments sharing in the assets of the Company at the same priority
as holders of Common Securities upon a Dissolution Event and (iii) and all holders of
Common Securities.

(d) Termination. This instrument will terminate (without relieving the Company or
the Investor of any obligations arising from a prior breach of or non-compliance with
this instrument) upon the earlier to occur: (i) the issuance of units in the CF Shadow
Series or Common Securities to the Investor pursuant to Section 1(a) or Section 1(b);
or (ii) the payment, or setting aside for payment, of amounts due to the Investor
pursuant to Sections 1(b) or 1(c).

StartEngine Crowdfunding SAFE (this offering)

The security will convert into Class b common stock and the terms of the StartEngine
Crowdfunding SAFE (this offering) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $0.00
Maturity Date: December 20, 2024
Interest Rate: 0.0%



Discount Rate: 20.0%
Valuation Cap: $115,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing, Liquidity Event and Maturity (see below)

Material Rights
(a) Equity Financing.

If an Equity Financing occurs before this instrument terminates in accordance with
Sections 1(b)-(e) , the Company shall notify the Investor of the closing of the Equity
Financing and issue to the Investor a number of shares of the Crowdfunding Stock.
The number of shares of the Crowdfunding Stock shall equal the quotient obtained by
dividing (x) the Purchase Amount by (y) the applicable Conversion Price.

(b) Liquidity Event.

If there is a Liquidity Event before the termination of this instrument , the Investor
will automatically receive from the Company a number of shares of the Crowdfunding
Stock equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the Liquidity Price. In connection with
this Section 1(b), the shares will be issued by the Company to the Investor
immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event.

(¢) Maturity. Unless this Crowdfunding Safe has been previously converted in
accordance with the terms of this Crowdfunding Safe, on the Maturity Date, this
Crowdfunding Safe shall automatically convert into Crowdfunding Stock. The number
of shares of the Crowdfunding Stock shall equal the quotient obtained by dividing (x)
the Purchase Amount by (y) the Safe Price.

(d) Dissolution Event. If there is a Dissolution Event before this instrument terminates
, subject to the preferences applicable to any series of Preferred Stock, the Company
will distribute its entire assets legally available for distribution with equal priority
among the Investor, all holders of other Crowdfunding Safes (on an as converted basis
based on a valuation of Common Stock as determined in good faith by the Company’s
board of directors at the time of Dissolution Event) and all holders of Common

Stock.

(e) Termination. This instrument will terminate (without relieving the Company of
any obligations arising from a prior breach of or non-compliance with this
instrument) upon the earlier to occur: (i) the issuance of shares in the Crowdfunding
Stock to the Investor pursuant to Section 1(a), 1(b) or 1(c); or (ii) the payment, or
setting aside for payment, of amounts due to the Investor pursuant to Section 1(d).

“Change of Control” means (i) a transaction or series of related transactions in which
any “person” or “group” (within the meaning of Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), becomes the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended),
directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of the
Company having the right to vote for the election of members of the Company’s board



of directors, (ii) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company, other
than a transaction or series of related transactions in which the holders of the voting
securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such transaction or series
of related transactions retain, immediately after such transaction or series of related
transactions, at least a majority of the total voting power represented by the
outstanding voting securities of the Company or such other surviving or resulting
entity or (iii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Company.

“Common Stock” means common stock, par value .001 per share, of the Company.

“Conversion Price” means either: (i) the Safe Price or (ii) the Discount Price,
whichever calculation results in a greater number of shares of the Crowdfunding
Stock.

“Crowdfunding Stock” shall mean Class B Common Stock

“Discount Price” means the price per share of Common Stock or Preferred Stock, as
applicable, sold in an Equity Financing multiplied by the Discount Rate.

“Dissolution Event” means (i) a voluntary termination of operations, (ii) a general
assignment for the benefit of the Company’s creditors or (iii) any other liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company (excluding a Liquidity Event), whether
voluntary or involuntary.

“Dividend Amount” means, with respect to any date on which the Company pays a
dividend on its outstanding Common Stock, the amount of such dividend that is paid
per share of Common Stock multiplied by (x) the Purchase Amount divided by (y) the
Liquidity Price (treating the dividend date as a Liquidity Event solely for purposes of
calculating such Liquidity Price).

“Equity Financing” shall mean a bonafide transaction or series of transactions
pursuant to which the the Company sells its Equity Securities to one or more third
parties following the date of this instrument from which the Company receives gross
proceeds of not less than $1,000,000 (excluding the conversion of any instruments
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Capital Stock, such as Safes or
convertible promissory notes) with the principal purpose of raising capital.

“Equity Securities” shall mean Common Stock or Preferred Stock or any securities
convertible into, exchangeable for or conferring the right to purchase (with or without
additional consideration) Common Stock or Preferred Stock, except in each case, (i)
any security granted, issued and/or sold by the Company to any director, officer,
employee, advisor or consultant of the Company in such capacity for the primary
purpose of soliciting or retaining his, her or its services, (ii) any convertible
promissory notes issued by the Company, and (iii) any Safes issued.

“Fully Diluted Capitalization” shall mean the aggregate number of issued and
outstanding shares of Capital Stock, assuming full conversion or exercise of all



convertible and exercisable securities then outstanding, including shares of
convertible Preferred Stock and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants
to purchase Capital Stock, but excluding (i) the issuance of all shares of Capital Stock
reserved and available for future issuance under any of the Company’s existing equity
incentive plans, (ii) convertible promissory notes issued by the Company, (iii) any
Safes, and (iv) any equity securities that are issuable upon conversion of any
outstanding convertible promissory notes or Safes.

“IPO” means the closing of the Company’s first firm commitment underwritten initial
public offering of Common Stock pursuant to an effective registration statement filed
under the Securities Act.

“Liquidity Capitalization” means the number, as of immediately prior to the Liquidity
Event, of shares of the Company’s capital stock (on an as-converted basis)
outstanding, assuming exercise or conversion of all outstanding vested and unvested
options, warrants and other convertible securities, but excluding: (i) shares of
Common Stock reserved and available for future grant under any equity incentive or
similar plan; (ii) any Safes; and (iii) convertible promissory notes.

“Liquidity Event” means a Change of Control or an IPO.

“Liquidity Price” means the price per share equal to the Valuation Cap divided by the
Liquidity Capitalization.

“Lock-up Period” means the period commencing on the date of the final prospectus
relating to the Company’s IPO, and ending on the date specified by the Company and
the managing underwriter(s). Such period shall not exceed one hundred eighty (180)
days, or such other period as may be requested by the Company or an underwriter to
accommodate regulatory restrictions on (i) the publication or other distribution of
research reports, and (ii) analyst recommendations and opinions.

“Preferred Stock” means the preferred stock of the Company.

“Regulation CF” means Regulation Crowdfunding promulgated under the Securities
Act.

“Safe” means any simple agreement for future equity (or other similar agreement),
including a Crowdfunding Safe, which is issued by the Company for bonafide
financing purposes and which may convert into Capital Stock in accordance with its
terms.

“Safe Price” means the price per share equal to the Valuation Cap divided by the Fully
Diluted Capitalization.

Series A Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 4,817,200 with a total of 4,817,200 outstanding.

Voting Rights



There are no voting rights associated with Series A Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

Dividends: Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to certain rights with
respect to dividends. Please see exhibit F for additional detail.

Liquidation Rights: Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to certain
liquidation preferences. Please see exhibit F for additional detail.

Election of Directors: Subject to certain conditions, Series A Preferred Stock holder
have the right to appoint one director to the Board. Please see exhibit F for additional
detail.

The Company may issue additional shares of Preferred Stock at a later date. The
issuance of such additional shares of Preferred Stock would be dilutive, and could
adversely affect the value of the Securities issued pursuant to Regulation CF.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of SAFE of the company, you will have limited rights in regards to
the corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:



e [nan IPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $2,235,781.24
Use of proceeds: Operations
Date: September 04, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $1,070,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations
Date: June 14, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

e Name: Series 1 Preferred Units® (Now Series A Preferred Stock)
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $318,126.00
Number of Securities Sold: 240,860
Use of proceeds: General Operations
Date: January 15, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $25,000.00
Use of proceeds: General Operations
Date: May 21, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and



results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Year ended December 31, 2020 compared to year ended December 31, 2021
Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2021 was $19.9M, up significantly compared to fiscal year 2020
revenue of $9.3M. As a result of high crypto prices translating to increased consumer
spending + continued expansion of Unbanked’s white-label business. We believe that
cyclical increases and decelines in cryptocurrency prices will continue to impact
spending behavior of consumers on card products, translating to company revenue.
However, further diversification of white-label business across different
cryptocurrencies assets (including stablecoins) should help balance that long term.

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue in 2021 was $14.7M, an increase of approximately $7.6M, from costs
of $7.1M in 2020. The change was largely due to an increase in consumer spending
habits on the card and an increase in marketing cost.

Gross profit

2021 gross profit increased to $5.2M over 2020 gross profit of $2.2M, an increase of
$3M year-over-year. This improved performance was caused by an increase in a
direct-to-consumer user base and increased card spend. In addition, more B2B
partners help contribute to this number.

Expenses

The Company’s expenses consist of, among other things, compensation and benefits,
marketing and sales expenses, fees for professional services and patents, research and
development expenses. Expenses in 2021 were $5M, up from approximately $2.6M in
2021. This increase was due to increased employee headcount and their compensation
and benefits costs. The Company hired approximately 26 employees in 2021, primarily
in engineering, product, compliance, and marketing.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the production stage and revenue-generating. We are of



the opinion the historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and cash
flows expected for the future because we anticipate additional long term growth. Past
cash was primarily generated through sales and revenues from product usage. Our
goal is to continue geographical expansion and partnership growth. Through
continued geographical reach and new B2B partnerships, our revenue should grow
into the future through more end consumers using our product.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of October 2022, the Company has capital resources available in the form of
$1,500,00 in cash and cryptocurrencies.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are not critical to our company operations. We
have other funds and capital resources available in addition to the funds from this
Regulation Crowdfunding campaign.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are not necessary to the viability of the
Company.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for over 12 months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$100,000 for expenses related to employee salaries; technical costs.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for over 24 months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$100,000 for expenses related to employee salaries; technical costs.



Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including institutional capital from private equity and venture capitalist. In particular,
we are currently contemplated undergoing a Regulation D and a Regulation A
offering.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: SBA EIDL Loan
Amount Owed: $150,000.00
Interest Rate: 3.75%
Maturity Date: July 23, 2050
3.75% per annum. Installment payments, including principal and interest of
$731 monthly will begin twelve (12) months from the date of issuance of the
promissory note. The balance of principal and interest will be payable thirty (30)
years from the date of the promissory note.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has not conducted any related party transactions
Valuation

Valuation Cap: $115,000,000.00

Valuation Cap Details: The company used a revenue multiple to determine the
valuation. The company's ~$20M revenue in 2021 multiplied by FinTech Saas
multipliers yielded a valuation higher than the $115M valuation cap used in this
offering.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $10,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Service Fees
94.5%
Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine



If we raise the over allotment amount of $2,764,218.76, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

® Marketing
34.0%
General marketing expenses.

e Operations
34.5%
Funds used for general operations of the company.

® Research & Development
20.0%
Funds used for research and development of future products.

o Legal
5.0%
Funds used to pay for legal services rendered.

e StartEngine Service Fees
1.0%
Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 29 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://unbanked.com/ (https://unbanked.com/company/investors/).



The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/unbanked

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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TaxDrop

Independent Auditor's Report

April 15, 2022

To: Board of Directors of Unbanked Inc.

Attn: lan Kane, CEO

Re: 2021 Consolidated Financial Statement Audit — Unbanked Inc. and subsidiaries

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Unbanked Inc. and subsidiaries, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of income, changes in members' equity,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. In our opinion, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Unbanked Inc. as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion o .

We conducted our audits in accordance with audmng standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards, are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be lndependent of Unbanked Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the reievant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we haveobtamed is suff‘ cuent. and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Fma‘ncnalStatements D R

Management is responsible for the preparationand-fair presentatlon of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in:the Umted States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial
statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Unbanked Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Unbanked Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about Unbanked Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Sincerely,

TaxDrop LLC

TaxDrop LLC
Robbinsville, New Jersey
April 15, 2022
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UNBANKED, INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2021
(Audited)
ASSETS 2021
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 928,804
Accounts receivable 79.000
Other current assets 72,572
Digital assets 757,448
TERN cryptocurrency 218,062
Custody accounts 4.555.031
Total Current Assets 6,610,918
Property and Equipment
Computer equipment 71,781
Blockcard platform 142,000
Web domain 87,312
Accumulated depreciation & amortization (104,475)
Total Other Assets 196,617

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY. ~ + (7

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Member payable
Credit cards .
Accrued expenses v
Accrued performance awards - TERN
Custody accounts
Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
EIDL loan
PPP loan
SAFE agreements
Dividends Payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Members' equity (deficit)
Series A Preferred 8% Membership Units 4,817,200
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021.
Additional Paid in Capital - Member Unit Options
Retained Eamings

Total Members' Equity

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity

6,807,535

S#

53,038
17,105
70,003
188,287
4,555,031
152,000

5,035,464

154,153
4,280
2,178,000
81,645

2,418,078

7,453,542

318,126
412,348
(1,376,482)

(646,008)

S

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of the financial statements.

6,807,535
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UNBANKED, INC
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year Ended December 31, 2021

(Audited)
2021

Revenues 19,850,760
Less: Cost of Tern Repurchases 14,700,506
Net Profit 5,150,254
Operating Expenses

General and administrative 68,956

Payroll and Contractors 3,171,783

Legal & Professional Services 919,687

Sales and marketing 537,766
Total Operating Expenses ‘ 4,698,192
Other Income/(Expense) AR

Other income/expense D § ) -

Depreciation and amortization PN @ | (26,587)

Impairment - Digital Assets Y Y N (82.696)

SAFE Valuation True Up Expense.~." < JUL® @ " o A (228,716)
Total Operating Expenses . - & N QY @ VY (337,999)
Net Income (Loss) N Qs A° S 114,063

The accompanying footnotes are ah i'iiteéral part of the financial statements.



Balance as of December 31, 2020
APIC - Membership Unit Options
[ssuance of Cumulative Preferred Dividend
Net Income

Balance as of December 31, 2021

UNBANKED, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MEMBERS® EQUITY

Year Ended December 31, 2021

FS-7

(Audited)
Additional Paid Retained
Preferred Common in Capital - Earnings/(Accumulated Total Members'
Membership Membership Membership Deficit) Equity

Units ($) Units (S) Unit Options
38,126 7 o - 167,995 (1,463,329) (977,208)
; 7 . 244,353 ; 244,353
> - | (27.215) (27,215)
D V= A A D - 114,063 114,063
3812600 412,348 1,376,482 646,008

The aécoii_lpapyiﬁg footnot

es are an integral part of the financial
statements.



UNBANKED, INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31, 2021

(Audited)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation & Amortization
Fair market value adjustment of SAFE agreements
Mark to market adjustment on cryptocurrency awards
Membership-unit option award compensation expense
Impairment of digital assets
Accrued Interest
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Digital assets
TERN cryptocurrency
Cash and securities segregated under federal and ot,hcr regulatlons
Custody Accounts Payable to Users AN &
Credit cards
Accrued expenses
Deferred Revenue : > o
Net cash provided by (used in) operahng actwutles

Cash Flows from Investing Aclivmes N
Acquisition of Fixed assets )
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of EIDL Loan
Interest on EIDL Loan

Net cash used in financing activities y
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning oﬁ;ﬁéﬁibd
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure
Cash paid on interest
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2021
$ 114,063

26,587
220,177
38,089
244,353
(82,696)
5,662

(79,000)
41,594
(523,711)
(34,240)
(4.555.031)
4,555,031
11,910
27,609
152,000
162,396

(125,790)
(125,790)

(1,509)

(1,509)
35,097

893,707

$ 928,804

$ 2,877

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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UNBANKED, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONSOLIDATION

Unbanked, Inc. was registered in Delaware on January 1, 2018, formally known as Ternio LLC as a limited liability
company which later incorporated into a Delaware C Corporation as of January 1, 2022 and changing its name to
Unbanked, Inc. (see Note 10). The Company provides a debit card for cryptocurrency holders to use where major
credit cards are accepted. The company issues bank accounts, debit cards and financial toolkit APIs - middleware
enabling cryptocurrencies to be spent at 40 million merchants world-wide. Unbanked, Inc. supports multiple coins
including Paxful, Nexo and Litcoin and is the only company enabling users to hold crypto until the point of sale. Other
cards take a user’s cryptocurrency, convert to fiat, and place the USD value on a card which is the equivalent of buying
a gift card. Deposit accounts made easy with a modern and intuitive interface that handles everything from tracking
spend, purchasing or selling cryptocurrencies, or transferring funds. Unbanked enables companies to build and scale
financial products by bringing a suite of product APIs that will integrate seamlessly within your company’s current or
future technology needs. The Company’s headquarters are in Alpharetta, Georgia. The company began operations in
2018.
»‘\,v

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries; .

e Temio Ltd, a United Kingdom corporatipn fomled on September 26, 2OI9

e Ternio Ireland Limited, an lreland cﬁrperatlon formed on July 12, 207|

The financials herein comprise the consohdated results Of Unbanked Inc. and: ns two subsidiaries (collectively which
may be referred to as the “C ompany “we ”"us‘ “our.” ot “U’nbzmked") N

Since Inception, the Company has rehed on cuntHbunons trom owners. the issuance of SAFE notes, and securing
loans to fund its operations. Duringthe next tvw.,lw monlhe, theé (ompany intends to fund its operations with funding
from a crowdfunding campaign (see Note 10), and funds’ from réventie producing activities, when such can be realized.
These financial statements and related notes thcrem do not lﬂCludL any adjustments that might result from these
uncertainties. )

L7,

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[N

y IV

Basis of Presentation QN

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("US GAAP"). Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance 1s meant to refer to U.S.
GAAP as found in the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU") of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and footnotes thereto. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates. It is reasonably possible
that changes in estimates will occur in the near term. The most significant accounting estimates inherent in the
preparation of the Company's financial statements include estimates associated with asset valuations including the
Company's cryptocurrency holdings, impairment analysis of intangibles, valuation of the Company, valuation of its
SAFEs, membership unit-based compensation and awards of intangible assets.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company has a limited operating history. The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general business
and economic conditions in the United States. A host of factors beyond the Company’s control could cause fluctuations
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in these conditions. Adverse conditions may include recession, downturn or otherwise, local competition or changes
in consumer taste. These adverse conditions could affect the Company's financial condition and the results of its
operations.

The Company participates in the cryptocurrency industry. As such, it may be exposed to changing regulations in the
industry that could impact the financial performance of the Company because of the inherent risk of the industry and
its participants. Changes in government regulation could adversely impact our business. The Company is subject to
legislation and regulation at the federal and local levels and, in some instances, at the state level. The Federal
Communications Commissions (FCC) and/or Congress may attempt to change the classification of or change the way
that our online content platforms are regulated and/or change the framework under which Internet service providers
are provided Safe Harbor for claims of copyright infringement, introduce changes to how digital advertising is
regulated and consumer information is handled, changing rights and obligations of our competitors.

The Company is subject to a highly evolving regulatory landscape and any adverse changes to, or failure to comply
with, any laws and regulations could adversely affect the brand, reputation, business, operating results, and financial
condition. Our business is subject to extensive laws, rules, regulations, policies, orders, determinations, directives,
treaties, and legal and regulatory interpretations and guidance in the markets in which we operate, including those
governing financial services and banking, broker-dealers and ATS, crypto asset custody, exchange, and transfer, cross-
border and domestic money and crypto asset transmission, privacy, data governance, data protection, cybersecurity,
fraud detection, payment services (including payment processing and settlement services), consumer protection, tax,

and anti-money laundering. Many of these legal»and Tegulatory regimes were adopted prior to the advent of the
internet, mobile technologies, crypto assets, and: Telated techuologles As a result, they do not contemplate or address
unique issues associated with the cryptocurréncy mduslry are subject to significant uncertainty, and vary widely
across U.S. federal, state, and local and lmer}atlona[»junsdlctlons Moreover, the complexity and evolving nature of
our business and the significant uncerufmty summndmg the regulation of the’ cryptocumency industry requires us to
exercise our judgement as to whether cenam laws. rules, and @gulqu«ons “apply to us, and it is possible that
governmental bodies and regulators may dl'i@gree \wth our. conclusxons. To the extent we have not complied with such
laws, rules, and regulations, we could be: s(ibjecttomgmﬂcant ﬁues revocation of licenses, limitations on our products
and services, reputational harm, and other rcgulatm'y comcqucnces, “cach of which may be significant and could
adversely affect our business, operating results, and ﬁmnmal Condition. Modifications to existing requirements or

imposition of new requirements or limitations could have an adw.rsc impact on our business.

\‘ /

As discussed in Note 9, COVID-19 has been dctcnmm.d lo bc a global pandemic and as a result there may be a
slowdown in the economy in the United States andglqba"y which could adversely affect the results of the Company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America, which it
believes to be credit worthy. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insures balances up to $250,000. At times,
the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Cryptocurrency holdings and cash equivalents may subject the Company to a concentration of risk. The largest portion
of Company holdings of cryptocurrency are in its TERN holdings and various other crypto currencies, acquired from
selling users TERN in exchange for other crypto currencies. The Company holding of TERN is 30,428,520 tokens
with an adjusted-for-impairment basis of $218,062 at December 31, 2021. The Company's cash equivalent consists
primarily of deposit account or money market funds. Certain bank deposits may at times be in excess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Commission (FDIC) insurance limits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less at the
time of purchase to be cash equivalents, Cash consists of funds held in the Company’s checking account. As of

December 31, 2021, the Company had $928,804 of cash on hand.

Cash and securities segregated under federal and other regulations
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The Company holds via omnibus cash and crypto wallet accounts its customers’ funds. The Company lists these
balances separately as it does not hold title or rights to these customer funds. The balance of cash or crypto currencies
held on behalf of customers is also listed as a liability account payable to users for an equal amount. As of December
31, 2021, the Company held $4,555,031 in omnibus accounts on behalf of its users (see Cryptocurrencies below).

In 2021, the Company began recording its balance of customer custody balances and corresponding payable balance
to users. Because of this new adoption in 2021, the previously audited financial statements did not carry any custody
account asset balance nor payable liability balance to users. Accordingly, the fluctuation within the change of balance
in each account from 2020 to 2021 appears to be the full balance of cash and crypto held in custody at the end of 2021.
The Company recognizes that this fluctuation is not entirely factual but does not have a reliable estimate to restate the
2020 ending custody and payable to users balance due to lack of recording and design surrounding these balances as
of December 31, 2020. For future years, the Company’s cash flow change in custody and payable to users balance
year over year will accurately reflect the change in customer account balances. The Company does not believe that
this fluctuation has a material impact on users of the financial statements” understanding of its underlying positions.

Receivables and Credit Policy

Trade receivables from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms, primarily
requiring pre-payment before services are rendered. Trade receivables are stated at the amount billed to the customer.
Payments of trade receivables are allocated to the specfﬁc‘imoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice or,
if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpald ivoice. H]e Company, by policy, routinely assesses the financial
strength of its customer. As a result, the C ompany beﬁevw fhat its accounts receivable credit risk exposure is limited,
and it has not experienced significant wrlte-downs in its, accounts receivable balanoes As of December 31, 2021, the
Company had $79,000 in accounts recewabie due ftotn \»h;te |abel sales. A >

Cryptocurrencies

'd

Cryptocurrencies, (including the. Compaﬁy's Unbimked,lnc ’fonnaljy Temlo "TERN", bitcoin, and other 3rd party
cryptocurrencies) are included in current assets m lhc accompanymg balance sheet. Cryplocum.ncnu purchased are

recorded at cost and sale of the Company's cryptocurfcnc!(zs atc accounted for in connection with the Company's
revenue recognition policy disclosed below. As of December 31, 2021, the Company holds in custody cryptocurrency
sccurities owned by client. As of December 31, 2021; 54,555 031 of client funds are held in custody.

Cryptocurrencies held are accounted for as mlangnbtc a«u» with indefinite useful lives. An intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life is not amortized but a\scﬁud for impairment annually, or more frequently, when events or
changes in circumstances occur indicating that itis more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is 1mpamd
Impairment exists when the carrying amount: ‘exceeds its fair value, which is measured using the quoted price of the
cryptocurrency at the time its fair value is being measured. In testing for impairment, the Company has the option to
first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that an impairment exists. If it is
determined that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, a quantitative impairment test is not necessary.
If the Company concludes otherwise, it is required to perform a quantitative impairment test. To the extent an
impairment loss is recognized, the loss establishes the new cost basis of the asset. Subsequent reversal of impairment
losses is not permitted.

Purchases of cryptocurrencies by the Company are included within operating activities in the accompanying statement
of cash flows. The sales of cryptocurrencies are included within operating activities in the accompanying statement
of cash flows and any realized gains or losses from such sales are included in operating expenses in the statement of
operations. The Company accounts for its gains or losses in accordance with specific identification. However, in the
absence of the ability to specifically identify the cryptocurrency being sold, the Company will use the first in first out
(FIFO) method of accounting in those cases.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has $975,510 in cryptocurrency. Of this, $218,062 for its own TERN currency
in 2021.

1-Jan-21 I-Jan-21 1-Jan-21
Crypto Balance FIFO Value Fair Market Value



Beginning Balance:
TERN
BTC
XLM
USDT
BMX
ETH
BAT
USDC
DAI
LTC
XRP
WETH
UNBNK
USDP
TUSD

(Sales)/Purchases of Crypto:

TERN
BTC
XLM
USDT
BMX
ETH
BAT
uUsDC
DAI
LTC
XRP
WETH
UNBNK
uspp
TUSD

Impairment of Crypto:
TERN

BTC

XLM

USDT

BMX

ETH

BAT

uUsSDC
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in Crypto in USD in USD
26,978,281 183,822 172,364
] 26,164 30,320
285 - 37
80,373 80,373 80,373
70 2 2
14 9,685 10,818
1 - -
1.002 33,149 1.002
1.400 1,400 1.400
- 7 20
1.189 262 261
Jan 1 - Dec 3@' %ﬁnl - Dec 31, 2021 Jan 1 - Dec 31, 2021
Crypto B -->- ; FIFO Value Fair Market Value
in €ta. 6 inUSD A&\ in USD

31-Dec-21
Crypto Balance
in Crypto

31-Dec-21
FIFO Value

in USD

(23,151)

(2,407)

(3,536)

31-Dec-21
Fair Market Value
in USD



FS-13

DAI -
LTC (46)
XRP -
WETH (52.882)
UNBNK (673)
USDP -
TUSD -
31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21
Crypto Balance FIFO Value Fair Market Value
Ending Balance: in Crypto in USD in USD
TERN 34,004,991 245,065 256,921
BTC 2 109,260 109,260
XLM 94,581 24,757 24,757
USDT - - -
BMX - - -
ETH 4 154,295 156,998
BAT AN | Qe I 1
USDC g B 10,712 10,712
DAI -
LTC 3,077
XRP -
WETH 347.118
UNBNK 1.815
USDP 60,482
TUSD 18,928
Fixed Assets

Property and equipment are recorded at co nditures for renewals and improvements that significantly add to
the productive capacity or extend the usef of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense. When equipment is retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
¢liminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected in income.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, based on useful lives of the assets which is three to five years.

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are
less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds
the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment include current operating
results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

As per ASC 350-30-50, management reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured
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by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Based on its reviews,
management determined that digital assets were impaired by a total of $82,696 based upon an assessment as of
December 31, 2021.

Other Assets

As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s other assets were comprised of Unbanked physical Blockcards in inventory
for future customers and prepaid expenses.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or be
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price)
and such principles also establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value using the
following definitions (from highest to lowest priority):

e Level | — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similarassets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corrobonifcd by observable market data by correlation or other means.

e Level 3 — Prices or valuation tcchmqg& rcqmrmg inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable. 7> \ .

/)

Income Taxes

- \\
The Company is a limited liability' commn‘y}nd 18 m.atodus a paxtz\fcre;bi}) Ffor tax purposes. Effective January 2022,
the Company will file taxes as Corporation. Accor\amgly,\tmdcr the Internial Revenue Code, all taxable income or loss
flows through to its members. Therefore; no prm;mon for mco\rhc um has been recorded in these financial statements,
Income from the Company is rcportbd and tax@ w0 ﬂu, mcmbcrs on their individual tax returns. We intend for cach
Series to elect and quallfy to be taxed as a st.parak. l‘bﬁl Cstatc m\'(.stmt.nl trust, or REIT, for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, commencing with the taxable year ending: aﬂu the complulon of the initial offering of interests of such
Series.

74
/
f v
7o -?
\ \ \ \\"4

The Company complies with FASB ASC 740 for accountmg for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a
company’s financial statements, which presgnbes a recognition threshold and measurement process for financial
statement recognition and measurement of @ iax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those
benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more- likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing
authorities. FASB ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. Based on the Company’s evaluation, it has been concluded that there are
no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The
Company believes that its income tax positions would be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments
that would result in a material change to its financial position. The Company may in the future become subject to
federal, state and local income taxation though it has not been since its inception. The Company is not presently
subject to any income tax audit in any taxing jurisdiction.

Leases

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company accounts for its leases under ASC 842, Leases (ASC 842). Under this
guidance, arrangements meeting the definition of a lease are classified as operating or financing leases and are
recorded on the balance sheet as both a right of use asset and lease liability, calculated by discounting fixed lease
payments over the lease term at the rate implicit in the lease or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease
liabilities are increased by interest and reduced by payments each period, and the right of use asset is amortized over
the lease term. For operating leases, interest on the lease liability and the amortization of the right of use asset result
in straight-line rent expense over the lease term.
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In calculating the right of use asset and lease liability, the Company elects to combine lease and non-lease components
as permitted under ASC 842. The Company excludes short-term leases having initial terms of 12 months or less from
the new guidance as an accounting policy election and recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no leases.
Revenue Recognition

The Company adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and its related amendments
(collectively known as “ASC 606"), effective January 1, 2018. The Company determines revenue recognition through
the following steps:

Identification of a contract with a customer;

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

Determination of the transaction price;

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
Recognition of revenue when or as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue is recognized when performance obligations: a:e sa;lsf ed through the transfer of services to the Company s
customers in an amount that reflects the consnderqnon expected to be received in exchange for transferring services to
customers. Control transfers once a customer hgs\(he ablhly to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the
benefits from, the product. This includes tbeA nst@r ot le;,al title, physical stsessmn the risks and rewards of
ownership, and customer acceptance. § )

N
If a good or service is not distinct, the gooa\or semce ls coinmed wnh_b,ther promised goods or services until a
bundle of goods or services is |dennhed umt is d&stmct ‘\\\ w@ X

The transaction price is the amount of consrdg.ra{uon lo whnch an c,nmy expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services o a customer. The consnduratnon promised in a contract with a customer may
include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. thh d«,zcﬁnmmg the transaction price, an entity must consider the
effects of all of the following:

)
v
/,
/

Variable consideration
Constraining estimates of variable wns&dcratmn

The existence of a significant ﬁnaqcmg component in the contract
Noncash consideration N

Consideration payable to a customer

Variable consideration is included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation on a relative
standalone selling price basis. The transaction price allocated to each performance obligation is recognized when that
performance obligation is satisfied, at a point in time or overtime as appropriate.

The Company’s revenue includes sales of its cryptocurrency TERN, transaction fees generated from customers using
its BlockCard debit card and from the licensing (white label) of its BlockCard platform to outside parties. The sale of
TERN is not contingent on a repurchase. Many customers purchase TERN to withdraw to their own wallets. Ternio
does however make it easy for customers to spend their TERN on the Blockcard; customers are able to deposit TERN
directly onto the card and spend TERN when it's converted into USD at point of sale.

The transaction consideration the Company receives, if any, is non-cash cryptocurrency in many cases, which the
Company measures at fair value on the date received. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company had
recognized revenue of $19,396,274 respectively for the delivery of TERN cryptocurrency which is considered
complete at the point of exchange at the timestamped point of transaction when the deposit of the purchased asset is
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received. The price of TERN is sold at either S.008 or the market price as determined by the Stellar Decentralized
Exchange whichever is greater.

For the white label partnerships, the transaction consideration is made up of two parts, the tri-phasic implementation
stage for a non- refundable fixed fee and revenue share of transactions after the white label partnership is implemented.
The performance obligation under the company’s white label program is considered complete once the following 3
phases of implementation are completed prior to initializing transactions and recognizing revenue in the same manner
as for the sales of TERN:

e Phase | - Microsite setup (if needed)
Phase 2 - Compliance document compilation
e  Phase 3 - Bank submission approval/denial

There is currently no specific definitive guidance under GAAP or alternative accounting framework for the accounting
for cryptocurrencies recognized as revenue or held, and management has exercised significant judgment in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment. In the event authoritative guidance is enacted by the FASB, the
Company may be required to change its policies, which could have an effect on the Company’s financial position and
results from operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Comp&lf/ had recogmzed revenue of $435,803 from white label

-

Cost of Revenue

TheC ompany s cost of revenue consists pnmarllyof thetost per “token of its crygtocurrency TERN which is accounted
for on first in first out (FIFO) cost ba’Sls t0(&e wallets used to purchassi{]'ERN independent of TERN Treasury
holdings but is reviewed for impairment penodlc;dl as d)s&tssed;n thesection Cryptocurrency above and as per ASU
guidance 2015-11 topic 330. Asthe company Js\n thebusmess of sellmg TERN cryptocurrency, the repurchases of
TERN are treated as a Cost of Salwas they ruplem\hihc comp?m s hwcnlory of TERN. The cost per token is obtained
from third parties such as the exchange used a&!hc\hmc of lhe transaction. Also included would be any other direct
costs to obtain the revenue but excluding dc.prumatmh and a.mm'!uatnon which are separately stated in the Company's

statement of operations.

Organizational Costs :‘,—,f-i:x;-“ '
In accordance with FASB ASC 720, orgammhonal costs, including accounting fees, legal fee, and costs of
incorporation, are expensed as incurred. \“~

Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Such costs approximated $537,766, for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

SAFE Valuation True Up Expense (previously labeled part of Interest Expense)

The Company’s non-cash true up expense for the year December 31, 2021 was $220,177 to account for the change in
fair value of the SAFE agreements.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognizes contingent liabilities when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Disclosure
in the notes to the financial statements is required for loss contingencies that do not meet both these conditions if there
is a reasonable possibility that a loss may have been incurred. The Company expenses as incurred the costs of
defending legal claims against the Company.
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Software Development Costs - Internal Use

Preliminary project stage costs are expensed as they are incurred. If a decision is made to move forward with
application development, this portion of the project is to be capitalized. Training costs are expensed as incurred as
well as data conversion costs.

Capitalization of costs begin when the preliminary project stage is completed and management with relevant authority
implicitly or explicitly authorize and commit to funding a project and it is probable that the project will be completed
and the software will be used to perform the function intended. When it is no longer probable the software will be
completed and placed in service no further costs shall be capitalized and impairment is applied to existing balances.
Capitalization ceases no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended
use after all substantial testing is completed.

Once the development has been substantially completed, post-implementation operation stage costs including
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Upgrades and enhancements are defined as modifications to existing internal-use software that result in additional
functionality-that is, modifications to enable the software to perform tasks that it was previously incapable of
performing. Upgrades and enhancements normally require new software specifications and may require a change to
all or part of the existing software specifications. In orde(for costs of specified upgrades and enhancements to internal
use computer software to be capitalized it must bE probable that those expenditures will result in additional
functionality. AN )

/ >

,,,,,,

minor upgrades and enhancements, those costs are expensed as lncusned ~

New software development actmtles tri gger oonsxdemnm\af’renwnmg useful lives of software that is to be replaced.
When replacing software, unamnrtlzed cokts 278 expenwﬂ when the new ‘software is ready for its intended use.

Web domain registration and soﬂwarc dcwlopment co@ts for me Block( ard platform eligible to be capitalized were
$229,312 for the year ending December 31, 2021 rcspechw,ly “Amortization cost was $11,695 for 2021.

Patents and Trademarks A

Cost to acquire a patent and trademark are rc,couied tmly if the amount spent 1s above capitalization thresholds. Once
they do, costs other than R&D are capltahzcdandamortw.d over the lifespan protected by the patent or trademark or
its useful life, if shorter. The company does: havc a patent System and Methods for Operating a Blockchain Network.
It also has two trademarks: BlockCardTM and LexiconTM. No costs have been capitalized as the expenditures have
not reached the capitalization threshold at the balance sheet dates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) in order to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations by, among other provisions, recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the
balance sheet for those leases classified as operating leases under previous U.S. GAAP. For public companies, ASU
2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 (including interim periods within those
periods) using a modified retrospective approach and early adoption is permitted. In transition, entities may also elect
a package of practical expedients that must be applied in its entirety to all leases commencing before the adoption
date, unless the lease is modified, and permits entities to not reassess (a) the existence of a lease, (b) lease classification
or (¢) determination of initial direct costs, as of the adoption date, effectively allowing entities to carryforward
accounting conclusions under previous U.S. GAAP. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic
842): Targeted Improvements, which provides entities an optional transition method to apply the guidance under Topic
842 as of the adoption date, rather than as of the earliest period presented. The Company adopted Topic 842 on January
1, 2019, using the optional transition method to apply the new guidance as of January 1, 2019, rather than as of the
earliest period presented, and elected the package of practical expedients described above. Based on the analysis, on
January 1, 2019, the Company recorded right of use assets and lease liabilities of approximately S0.
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In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting,
which simplifies the accounting for share-based payments granted to nonemployees for goods and services. Under the
ASU, most of the guidance on such payments to nonemployees would be aligned with the requirements for share-
based payments granted to employees. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted, but no
earlier than an entity's adoption date of Topic 606. The Company adopted this new standard on January 1, 2019 and
the adoption did not have a material impact on its financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, "Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework-
Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement” ("ASU 2018-13"), which makes a number of
changes meant to add, modify or remove certain disclosure requirements associated with the movement amongst or
hierarchy associated with Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company adopted ASU
2018-13 on January 1, 2020 and its adoption did not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements and
related disclosures.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for
Income Taxes (ASU 2019-12) which is intended to simplify various aspects related to accounting for income taxes.
ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions to the general“principles in Topic 740 and also clarifies and amends existing
guidance to improve consistent application. This gmdance lsﬂefiectwe for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020,\Vﬂth eady adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of this standard on its ﬁnancnal st ’/v_ ‘nts aml related disclosures. ,,,;::»

\\\\\\

including those above, that amend th& Orfgl l lex; of’ASC Management belle\fes that those issued to date either (I)
provide supplemental guidance, (u) are techmcal comcUth; (lu) are not appllcable to us or (iv) are not expected to
have a significant impact our ﬁnanmal statemenfsa g"_‘;.»- \- > @A
Y o & &
Member Unit Based Compensatlon N XX ) A °
/‘ N \\ Vv A .-,Q‘,:-"; )
The Company accounts for unit-based payment awards o.xchangcd for services at the estimated grant date fair value
of the award. Membership unit options issued under the” Company's long-term incentive plan is granted with an
exercise price equal to no less than the market price 6f‘tlu. Company's membership unit at the date of grant and expire
within 30 days after termination of agreement wnh apphcablc suppliers. These options generally vest over a three -
year period. A

Q)
The Company estimates the fair value of mcr\ﬁbcrship unit option grants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
and the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of membership unit-based awards represent management's best
estimates and involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s judgment.

Expected Term - The expected term of options represents the period that the Company's membership unit-based
awards are expected to be outstanding based on the simplified method, which is the half-life from vesting to the end
of its contractual term.

Expected Volatility - The Company computes membership unit price volatility over expected terms based on
industry/competitor volatility levels in absence of trading price ranges being readily available for the Company. Risk-
Free Interest Rate - The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury
zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term.

Expected Dividend - The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common units and does not
plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future, and, therefore, uses an expected dividend yield of zero in its
valuation models.
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The Company clected to account for forfeited awards as they occur, as permitted by Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") 2016~ 09. Ultimately, the actual expenses recognized over the vesting period will be for those units that
vested.

NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets at December 31, 2021 consists of the following:

2021
Blockcard Platform 142.000
Computer Equipment 71,781
Web Domain 87.312
Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization (104,475)
Total S 196.617

Depreciation expenses totaled $14,892 for the year ended December 31, 2021, respectively (see Note 2 — Fixed
Assets).

NOTE 4 - OTHER OBLIGATIONS AP

Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) ) \\ '

In July 2020, the Company received an, Economlc Fnjury Disaster Loan ("EIDL") for $150,000 subject to a 30-year
repayment schedule beginning 12 months afterloan mcapuonnnd atan mte(est rate of 3.75%. The monthly payments
are S731 per month over the repaymem tecm%d can be pmdbacl( early without penalty. The collateral in which this
security interest is granted includes the followxng propefty that Company now owns or shall acquire or create
immediately upon the acquisition or creation fhereof‘ all (anglble In Process and mtanglble personal property,
including, but not limited to: (a) inventory, (b) eqmpment (c} instruments, including promissory notes, (d) chattel
paper, including tangible chattel paper and electromc cha(tcl paper, (e) documents, (f) letter of credit rights, (g)
accounts, including health-care insurance receivablés. and credlt card receivables, (h) deposit accounts, (1) commercial
tort claims, (j) general intangibles, mcludmg payment mfanglbles and software, and (k) as-extracted collateral as such
terms may from time to time be defined in the Umtmm Commercial Code. The security interest Company grants
includes all accessions, attachments, accessories, parts, supplies and replacements for the Collateral, all products,
proceeds and collections thereof and all records and data relating thereto.

""J

Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE)
2019 SAFES

On May 21, 2019, the Company issued SAFE agreements for future equity for fair market value of $25,000. The
agreement is not equity but provides for conversion to preferred membership units in the event of an equity financing
or liquidity event and also carries a 20% discount to share price for the future equity based on a $15million post-
money valuation cap. In a dissolution event the holder will receive similar preference as common unitholders.

1. Events
(a) Equity Financing.

(1) If an Equity Financing occurs before this instrument terminates in accordance with Sections 1(b)-(d) (“First Equity
Financing™), the Company shall notify the Investor of the closing of the First Equity Financing and of the Company’s
discretionary decision to either (1) continue the term of this Crowd SAFE without converting the Purchase Amount
to Capital Stock; or (2) issue to the Investor a number of units of the CF Shadow Series of the Capital Stock (whether
Preferred Securities or another class issued by the Company), as applicable, sold in the First Equity Financing. The
number of shares of the CF Shadow Series of such Capital Stock shall equal the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the
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Purchase Amount by (y) the applicable Conversion Price (such applicable Conversion Price, the “First Equity
Financing Price™).

(11) If the Company elects to continue the term of this Crowd SAFE past the First Equity Financing and another Equity
Financing occurs before the termination of this Crowd SAFE in accordance with Sections 1(b)-(d) (cach, a
“Subsequent Equity Financing™), the Company shall notify the Investor of the closing of the Subsequent Equity
Financing and of the Company’s discretionary decision to either (1) continue the term of this Crowd SAFE without
converting the Investor’s Purchase Amount to Capital Stock: or (2) issue to the Investor a number of shares of the CF
Shadow Series of Preferred Stock sold in the Subsequent Equity Financing. The number of shares of the CF Shadow
Series of the Capital Stock (whether Preferred Securities or another class issued by the Company) shall equal to the
quotient obtained by dividing (x) the Purchase Amount by (y) the First Equity Financing Price.

(b) Liquidity Event.

(1) If there is a Liquidity Event before the termination of this instrument and before any Equity Financing, the Investor
will, at its option, either (i) receive a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount (subject to the following paragraph)
or (ii) automatically receive from the Company a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by the Liquidity Price, if the Investor fails to select the cash option. In connection with this Section 1(b)(i),
the Purchase Amount will be due and payable by the Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent
with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event. If theré are not enough funds to pay the Investor and holders of other
Crowd SAFEs (collectively, the “Cash-Out lmestoré") n: full then all of the Company’s available funds will be
distributed with equal priority and pro rata amonglhe C ash-Out Investors in propornon to their Purchase Amounts,
(11) If there is a Liquidity Event after one onnore quty Financings have occurred but before the termination of this
instrument, the Investor will, at its optlon, either (l)recewea ‘cash payment equn] tathe Purchase Amount (as described
in the foregoing paragraph) or (ii) automatmally l;ece‘lw from the\C‘ ompany a number of units of the most recent
issued Capital Stock (whether Preferred Secuntles or auoihér class’ |ssuea by the Company) equal to the Purchase
Amount divided by the First Equity Flnaﬂcmg Pnce if the Investor fails'to select the cash option. Shares of Capital
Stock granted in connection therewith shall have thc \amc hquidahon rights and preferences as the shares of Capital
Stock issued in connection with the Company’ \mmt rcc‘.cnt Eqmty Financing.

IS
(¢) Dissolution Event. If there is a Dissolution l:»ch\ b«,fo/re lhns instrument terminates in accordance with Sections
1(a) or 1(b), subject to the preferences applicable to any series of Preferred Securities, the Company will distribute its
entire asscts legally available for distribution with. oqnal priority among the (i) Investors (on an as converted basis
based on a valuation of Common Securities as determined in good faith by the Company’s board of directors at the
time of Dissolution Event), (i1) all other holdcrsr of instruments sharing in the assets of the Company at the same
priority as holders of Common Securitics uptm a Dissolution Event and (iii) and all holders of Common Securities.
(d) Termination. This instrument will terminate (without relieving the Company or the Investor of any obhgauom
arising from a prior breach of or non-compliance with this instrument) upon the earlier to occur: (1) the issuance of
units in the CF Shadow Series or Common Securities to the Investor pursuant to Section 1(a) or Section 1(b); or (i1)
the payment, or setting aside for payment, of amounts due to the Investor pursuant to Sections I(b) or 1(c).

2020 SAFES

In 2020, the Company held a successful crowdfunded offering ("Crowdfunded Offering") of $1.070,000 of Simple
Agreements for Future Equity ("SAFEs"). The Crowdfunded Offering is being made through OpenDeal Portal Inc.
(the "Intermediary" aka "Republic" or "Republic.co"”). The Intermediary will be entitled to receive a 6% commission
fee of the amount raised and 2% of the securities issued in this offering.

The SAFEs are not currently equity interests in the Company and can be thought of as the right to receive equity at
some point in the future upon the occurrence of certain events. The securities do not entitle the Investors to any
dividends. Currently, there is no specific guideline from the FASB for the accounting treatment of the SAFE
agreements. SAFE agreements can be thought of as naked warrants for the future purchase of equity in the company.
The FASB directs for warrants to be recorded as equity. Since the SAFE agreements would not be refunded in the
case the company does not issue equity in the future and because the Company is confident it will be issuing equity
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in the near term, the Company has elected to treat the aggregate amount raised under the SAFE Agreements as equity
with the actual quantity of shares allocated to be determined at a later date using the guidance outlined below.

Upon each future equity financing of greater than $1,000,000 (an "Equity Financing"), the SAFEs are convertible at
the option of the Company, into CF Shadow Series Securities, which are securities identical to those issued in such
future Equity Financing except 1) they do not have the right to vote on any matters except as required by law, 2) they
must vote in accordance with the majority of the investors in such future Equity Financing with respect to any such
required vote and 3) they are not entitled to any inspection or information rights (other than those contemplated by
Regulation CF). The Company has no obligation to convert the SAFEs in any/future financing.

[f the Company elects to convert the SAFEs upon the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the securities,
the Investor will receive the number of CF Shadow Series Securities equal to the greater of the quotient obtained by
dividing the amount the Investor paid for the SAFEs (the "Purchase Amount") by:

(a) the quotient of S15,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of issued and outstanding shares of capital
membership unit, assuming full conversion or exercise of all convertible and exercisable Securities then outstanding,
including shares of convertible. preferred membership unit and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants
to purchase capital membership unit, but excluding (i) the issuance of all shares of capital membership unit reserved
and available for future issuance under any of the Company's existing equity incentive plans, (ii) convertible
promissory notes issued by the Company, (iii) any Simple Agreements for Future Equity, including the Securities
(collectively, "Safes"), and (iv) any equity Secuntle's thaf a(e lssuable upon conversion of any outstanding convertible
promissory notes or Safes, QN )

OR

(b) the lowest price per share of the Secuntle so]dm SOCh Equlty Emanc;ng mulnphed by 80%. The price (either (a)
or (b)) determined immediately above shall be deemed t.he “First Fmanemg Price" and may be used to establish the
conversion price of the Securities at a later datz, even if the Cumpanydoes not choose to convert the Securities upon
the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Soct.mtu,\ The preﬁ.rcnual or discounted rate is included as
standard part of the SAFE agreements for dO“(n\‘llk pfatoctmn for the investor in case of a subsequent round at a
discounted valuation. If the Company elects to convert the SAFEs upon an Equity Financing after the first Equity
Financing following the issuance of the Securitics;” ‘the Trvestor will receive the number of CF Shadow Series
Securities equal to the quotient obtained by dmdmg (a) tlfe Purchase Amount by (b) the First Financing Price.

In the case of an initial public offering of the (.ompany ("IPO") or Change of Control (sce below) (either of these
events, a "Liquidity Event") of the Companypnorto any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the option of
the Investor, either (1) a cash payment cqujal ‘1o the Purchase Amount (subject to the following paragraph) or (ii) a
number of shares of common membership unit of the Company equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the quotient
of (a) $15,000,000 divided by (b) the number, as of immediately prior to the Liquidity Event, of shares of the
Company's capital membership unit (on an as-converted basis) outstanding, assuming exercise or conversion of all
outstanding vested and unvested options, warrants and other convertible securities, but excluding: (i) shares of
common membership unit reserved and available for future grant under any equity incentive or similar plan; (ii) any
Safes: and (iii) convertible promissory notes.

In connection with a cash payment described in the preceding paragraph, the Purchase Amount will be due and payable
by the Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event.
If there are not enough funds to pay the Investors and holders of other SAFEs (collectively, the "Cash-Out Investors")
in full, then all of the Company's available funds will be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the Cash-
Out Investors in proportion to their Purchase Amounts. "Change of Control" as used above and throughout this section,
means (i) a transaction or transactions in which any person or group becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50%
of the outstanding voting securities entitled to elect the Company's board of directors, (ii) any reorganization, merger
or consolidation of the Company, in which the outstanding voting security holders of the Company fail to retain at
least a majority of such voting securities following such transaction(s) or (ii1) a sale, lease or other disposition of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Company.
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In the case of a Liquidity Event following any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the option of the Investor,
cither (1) a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount (as described above) or (i1) a number of shares of the most
recently issued preferred membership unit equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the First Financing Price. Shares
of preferred membership unit granted in connection therewith shall have the same liquidation rights and preferences
as the shares of preferred membership unit issued in connection with the Company's most recent Equity Financing.

[f there is a Dissolution Event (see below) before the Securities terminate, the Company will distribute, subject to the
preferences applicable to any series of preferred membership unit then outstanding, all of its assets legally available
for distribution with equal priority among the Investors, all holders of other SAFEs (on an as converted basis based
on a valuation of common membership unit as determined in good faith by the Company's board of directors at the
time of the Dissolution Event) and all holders of common membership unit. A "Dissolution Event" means (i) a
voluntary termination. of operations by the Company, (ii) a general assignment for the benefit of the Company's
creditors or (iii) any other liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (excluding a Liquidity Event),
whether voluntary or involuntary.

Per SEC guidance, the SAFE instruments are recorded as a long-term liability of the Company rather than equity. The
Company has elected to apply the level 3 fair value option to account for the SAFE instruments and on December 31,
2021 estimated the fair value of these to be $1,957,823. For as long as the SAFE instruments remain outstanding, the
Company will continue to record changes in fair value as an increase or decrease to interest expense.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be recel\'ed to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e., an exit price). The accounting guidance includes
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the mputs to valuat;on techniques used to megsure fair value. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy are as follows: N : i

* Level | — Unadjusted quoted prlces__for ldentlcal assets or habllmes in actwe markets;

* Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted pnt‘es n acfwe markets for ldentt(:al assets and liabilities that are observable
cither directly or indirectly for subs(anually the full tmm of thc aqsct or liability; and

* Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset OF habthty, whxch mcludc management's own assumption about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing thc. asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

The following reconciles the SAFEs’ principal balam.c 10 thc. amounts presented on the balance sheet at December
31:

.-:::;;;‘3‘ Years Ended December 31,

2021
Principal Balance Outstanding $2,018,000
Estimated Fair Value adjustment at December 31, 2021 $220,177
Estimated Fair Value at December 31, 2021 2,213,117
Less: unamortized issuance costs (60,177)

Balance at December 31, 2021 $2=l78=000

As of the date of management evaluation, the 2021 Company valuation had not yet been finalized. To adjust the
SAFEs for current valuation, management reviewed the prior year's extemnally prepared valuation report to understand
its forecasted 2021 financials compared to actuals. Management also performed an analysis of the market cap for BTC
which at the end of 2021 increased approximately 63% year over year. The prior year valuation provided a range for
the SAFEs of $1.858-2.178 M. In 2020, the adjustment recorded brought the value of the SAFEs to the lower end of
the range valuing it at $1.947M. Based in the information analyzed it was deemed the best estimate for 2021 would
be to adjust the value of SAFEs to the high end of the 2020 range as such increasing the SAFE balance by
approximately $220,000 and also increasing the expense on SAFE valuation. Management plans to revise the
valuation true up expense when the 2021 valuation report is available.
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NOTE 5 - ACCRUED PERFORMANCE AWARDS

The Company has entered into agreements for several contractors to pay them performance awards most which vest
over a one-to-three-year period. The awards are denominated in TERN. The company recognizes expenses over the
vesting period and the liability is adjusted to fair market value at the date of the balance sheet for awards not issued.
The mark to market adjustment was $38,089 in expense for 2021.

NOTE 6 - MEMBERS®’ EQUITY

Unit Split During the Reporting Period

On February 20, 2021, the Company’s board of directors declared a twenty-for-one unit split, effected in the form of
a unit dividend, on all units of the Company’s unit classes. Each member of record on February 1, 2021 received
additional units of their respective units held until 20x of their original balances for each unit of respective unit class
was then held. The units were issued June 24, 2021.

Non-Voting Class B Common Units

Y
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had 186, 182,800 umts of non-voting class B common units issued to its two
founders. \\J ROk

Voting Class A Common Units

Redeemable Preferred Membershlp Udlts

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has 1s.\uod and ou!slanﬁing 4 817,200 shares of 8% Series A $0.46 par value
prcfuud membership unit for $318,126. The mCmbers}np units have full voting rights and antidilutive rights upon
new issuances up to $15 million valuation and no anti=dilutive rights above that level. There is a cumulative preferred
dividend which as of December 31, 2021 1s $81,645. Thé aécrucd dividend payable is listed under long term liabilities.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or wmdmg up of the Company, the proceeds shall be paid as follows:
Owners of the Preferred Units will be entitled to return of their capital contribution (i.c., the purchase price) plus
accrued dividends in respect of the Units beforc owners of the Company's Preferred units wnll be entitled to return on
their capital contributions in respect of the Preferred units. Upon a liquidation event and after the owners of Preferred
units have received a return of their capital contributions, all owners of the Company's membership interests (i.c.,
preferred and Common units) will share in the remaining proceeds of the Company pro rata based on the number of
units owned. A merger or consolidation (other than one in which stockholders of the Company own a majority by
voting power of the outstanding units of the surviving or acquiring corporation) and a sale, lease, transfer, exclusive
licensor other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company will be treated as a liquidation event
(a "Deemed Liquidation Event"), thereby triggering payment of the liquidation preferences described above.

Except with respect to certain protective provisions, the holders of Preferred vote together with Common stock on all
matters on an as- converted basis. So long as ten (10%) percent, of Preferred Units are outstanding, in addition to any
other vote or approval required under the Company's Charter or Bylaws, the Company will not, without the written
consent of the holders of at least 51% of the Company's Preferred Units, either directly or by amendment, merger,
consolidation, or otherwise: (i) liquidate, dissolve / wind-up the affairs of the Company, or effect any merger or
consolidation or any other Deemed Liquidation Event: (ii) amend, alter, or repeal any provision of the Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws in a manner adverse to the Preferred Units; (ii1) create or authorize the creation of or issue
any other security convertible into or exercisable for any equity security, having rights, preferences or privileges senior
to or on parity with the Preferred Units, or increase the authorized number of shares of Preferred Units; (iv) purchase
or redeem or pay any dividend on any capital stock prior to the Preferred Units, other than units repurchased from
former employees or consultants in connection with the cessation of their employment/services, at the lower of fair
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market value or cost; other than as approved by the Board; or (v) create or authorize the creation of any debt security
if the Company's aggregate indebtedness would exceed $250,000 other than equipment leases or bank lines of credit
unless such debt security has received the prior approval of the Board of Directors; (vii) create or hold membership
interests in any subsidiary that is not a wholly-owned subsidiary or dispose of any subsidiary stock or all or
substantially all of any subsidiary assets; or (vii) increase or decrease the size of the Board of Directors.

In the event that the Company issues additional securities at a purchase price less than the current Preferred Units
conversion price, such conversion price shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula: "Typical"
weighted average: CP2= CP1*(A+B) / (A+C) CP2=Preferred Unit Conversion Price in effect immediately after new
issue. CP1=Preferred Unit Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to new issue. A=Number of units of Class A
and Class B units deemed to be outstanding immediately prior to new issue (includes all shares of outstanding Class
A and Class B units, all units of outstanding preferred units on an as-converted basis, and all outstanding options on
an as-exercised basis; and does not include any convertible securities converting into this round of financing).
B=Aggregate consideration received by the Corporation with respect to the new issue divided by CP1C=Number of
membership units issued in the subject transaction. The following issuances shall not trigger anti-dilution
adjustment:(i) securities issuable upon conversion of any of the Preferred Units, or as a dividend or distribution on the
Preferred Units; (ii) securities issued upon the conversion of any debenture, warrant, option, or other convertible
security; (iii) Preferred units issuable upon a unit split, unit dividend, or any subdivision of units of Preferred; and (iv)
units of Preferred units (or options to purchase such units of Preferred units) issued or issuable to employees or
directors of, or consultants to, the Company pursuant to any plan approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
Each Preferred Unit will automatically be conv e‘ded 1nt0 Common units at the then applicable conversion rate in the

event of the closing of a firm commitment underwntten pubhc offering with a price of three (3x) times the Original
Purchase Price (subject to adjustments for. stock dmdends, splits, combinations and similar events) and gross proceeds
to the Company of not less than S30, 000,000 (a "QPO") or (n) uyon the wnttenconsent of the holders of 51%of the
Preferred Units. & t\ ¥ @ & ~

(D ,..\,
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Unless prohibited by Delaware Iaw gm emmg dlstrlbunoos to Stockholders the Series A Preferred shall be redeemable
at the option of holders of at least 51%-of the SCm.e. A Pn.fmcd commencing any time after five (5) years at a price
equal to the Original Purchase Price plus all accrued but nnpald dividends. Upon a redemption request from the holders
of the required percentage of the Series A Prcfcrrcd aﬂ S«.rws A Preferred shares shall be redeemed.

NOTE 7 - MEMBERSHIP OPTIONS, WARRANTS AI\D RESTRICTED COMMON UNITS

In December 2019, the Company's members approvcd its 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the"2019 Plan"), which allows
the Company to issue options to purchase (.onnnon units of the Company at fair market value. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, 550,000 and 450,000 opllons were granted to contractors of the Company allowing them to purchase
a common membership unit at $1.50 per unit. The restricted membership unit rights have a grant date fair value of
approximately $687,500 or $1.25 per unit and vest over a period of three years and one month. No new options were
granted in 2021.

Membership Unit-based Compensation

The Company's membership unit-based compensation expenses recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021
were attributable to general and administrative expenses, which are included in the accompanying statement of
operations.

The Company recognized total membership unit-based compensation expense during the years ended December 31,
2021 of $244,353.

Membership Unit Incentive Plan Options

The Company estimates the fair value of the unit-based option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model (the "Black-Scholes model"). Using the Black-Scholes model, the value of the award that is
ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service period in the statement of operations. The Company
attributes compensation to expense using the straight-line single option method for all options granted. The Company's
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determination of the estimated fair value of unit-based payment awards on the date of grant under the 2019 Plan is
affected by the following variables and assumptions:

The grant date exercise price - the estimated market price of the Company's common membership units on
the date of the grant;

Expected option term - based on similar companies due to lack of historical experience with existing option
holders estimated at 3 years;

Estimated dividend rates - based on historical and anticipated dividends over the life of the option; Legal
term of the option grants have legal lives of continuous employment +30 days:

Risk-free interest rates - with maturities that approximate the expected life of the options granted:
Calculated membership unit price volatility - calculated over the expected life of the options granted, which
is calculated based on similar company experience in the same industry;

Option exercise behaviors - based on actual and projected employee membership unit option exercises and
forfeitures. The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur.

The Company currently provides membership unit-based compensation to contractors and consultants under the 2019
Plan. There were no new membership unit options issued during the year ended December 31, 2021. The Company
utilized assumptions in the estimation of fair value of membership unit-based compensation for the year ended
December 31, 2021, as follows:

\/
a f RN
/\@ \v/«} December 31, 2021
Dividend Yield ?5 j& 0% 2
Expected Price Volatlh&y @ @4 @ 152%159%%
Risk Free Intcmggztc(\() @ @ ﬂ\ Qé%

§\ @ \3 .08 Years

0

Expected Term )

N \\\ : \
A summary of membership unit optlon actnvnty\\under tbe 2019 Plan for options to contractors, for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is presented below: \\
@ 4 Weighted Average
\ 7 Remaining
—Unﬁs Underlying Weighted Average Contractual Term
\\J "~ Options Exercise Price (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 0 $0.00
Granted 450,000 $1.50
Exercised 0 $0.00
Forfeited 0 $0.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 450,000 $1.50 3
Granted 100,000 $0.00
Exercised 0 $0.00
Forfeited 0 $0.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 550,000 $1.50 2
Granted 0 $0.00
Exercised 0 $0.00
Forfeited 0 $0.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 550,000 $1.50 |

Vested at December 31, 2021 329 878 $1.50 1
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As of December 31, 2021 total compensation cost related to non-vested options unamortized is $275,152 in 2021.
NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Member Payable

The Company has taken an advance from its member of $53,038 as of December 31, 2021. These advances do not
have a specified maturity date, and no interest rate is specified or being charged currently. These balances had been
forgiven by the Company’s founder subsequent to year end.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject at times to various claims, lawsuits and governmental proceedings relating to the Company's
business and transactions arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company cannot predict the final outcome
of such proceedings. Where appropriate, the Company vigorously defends such claims, lawsuits and proceedings.
Some of these claims, lawsuits and proceedings seek damages, including, consequential, exemplary or punitive
damages, in amounts that could, if awarded, be significant. Certain of the claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in
ordinary course of business are covered by the Company's insurance program. The Company maintains property, and
various types of lability insurance in an effort to protect the Company from such claims. In terms of any matters
where there is no insurance coverage available to tbe"“Company or where coverage is available and the Company
maintains a retention or deductible associated with such instrance, the Company may establish an accrual for such
loss, retention or deductible based on current a\'al]able mfolmatlon In accordance with accounting guidance, if it is

probable that an asset has been impaired, or a lmblhty has ‘been incurred as of the date of the financial statements, and
the amount of loss is reasonably estimable; ﬁi\en an-acerual for the cost to resolve or settle these claims is recorded by
the Company in the accompanying balance sheet. Jf it is° [Easonably possible tbaf an asset may be impaired as of the
date of the financial statement, then theCompany dlsdoses the range of poss;ble loss. Expenses related to the defense
of such claims are recorded by the' Company as mcurred and mcluded an the accompanying statement of operations.
Management, with the assistance of outside con,msel may ﬁom timeto time adjust such accruals according to new
developments in the matter, court nulings, or changuh in the é.lxatugy»ﬂffutmg the Company's defense of such matters.
On the basis of current. information, the Company does’ not bohcvt. ‘there is a reasonable possibility that any material
loss, if any, will result from any claims, lawsum and procecdmgs to which the Company is subject to ecither

N

individually, or in the aggregate.
The Company is not currently involved with and does ot know of any pending or threatening litigation against the
Company as of December 31, 2021. A\ V

N

COVID-19 Qo

A N\ Y
NN N

In January 2020, the World Health Organuahon has declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a
“Public Health Emergency of Intemational Concern,” which continues to spread throughout the world and has
adversely impacted global commercial activity and contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial
markets. The coronavirus outbreak and government responses are creating disruption in global supply chains and
adversely impacting many industries. The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and
market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown. The rapid development and fluidity of this
situation precludes any prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the coronavirus outbreak. Nevertheless,
the outbreak presents uncertainty and risk with respect to the Company, its performance, and its financial results.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Legal Entity Classification Reorganization

On January 1, 2022, the Company converted from an LLC to a C corporation and, as a result, became subject to
corporate federal and state income taxes (see Note 1),

Crowdfunded Offering
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The Company is offering (the “Crowdfunded Offering™) up to $5,000,000 in Simple Agreements for Future Equity
(SAFEs). The Company is attempting to rais¢ a minimum amount of $25,000 in this offering and up to $5,000,000
maximum. The Company must receive commitments from investors totaling the minimum amount by the offering
deadline listed in the Form C, as amended in order to receive any funds. As of April 22, 2022, the Company had raised
a growing total of approximately $2,700,000

The Crowdfunded Offering is being made through OpenDeal Portal LLC (the “Intermediary™ aka “Republic™ or
“Republic.co™). The Intermediary will be entitled to receive a 6% commission fee and 2% of the securities issued in
this offering.

Management’s Evaluation
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 15, 2022, the date the financial statements were available

to be issued. Based on this evaluation, no additional material events were identified which require adjustment or
disclosure in the financial statements.



Ternio, LLC
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 893,707 $ 42,904
Other Current Assets
Current Assels 114,166 -
Digital Assets 151,042 171,325
TERN Cryplocurrency 183,822 167,833
Total Other Current Assets 449 030 339,158
Total Current Assels 1,342,737 382,062
Fixed Assets
Computer Equipment 63,614 50,872
Blockcard Platform 95,000 95,000
Web Domain ’\y 16,689 -
o I \” o
Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization % ‘% o (77,889) (35.111)
Total Fixed Assets %g Q) 97,414 110,761
TOTAL ASSETS @ @@ SR 1440151 $ 492,823
N @
N O
O ® S D &
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT \\% ©p ,1 : & @ %
Liabilities ®) N @ N
~QO° & . @ R
Current Liabilities l@ f@ ®@ @ %;_ - O}
Accounts Payable @@' % ®@ 6@}@4’ 03 \y‘:’/ $ - 8 4536
Member Payable © @ \ © 53,038 71,566
Credit Card g @ A oo® 5,195 .
Accrued Expenses ~ @\y 42,394 31,889
Accrued Performance Awards - TERN U ]\ 150,198 158,477
Total Current Liabilities @\@ 250,826 266,468
Long-Term Liabilities f‘% ‘7
EIDL Loan @\ 150,000 -
PPP Loan s 4,280 .
Total Long-Term Liabilities 154,280 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 405,106 266,468
Commitments and Contingencies
Redeemable Preferred Membership Units:
Series A Preferred 8% Membership Units 240,860 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019 respectively. Includes Cumuative preferred dividends of $54 430 and $27,215 as of
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 respectively, 372,556 345,341
Members' Equity (Deficit)
Membership Interest Units 9,759,140 issuad and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and December
31,2019 - -
Simple Agreements for Fulure Equity (SAFE), net of issuance costs of $60,177 1,034,823 25,000
Additional Paid in Capital - Membership Unit Options 167,965 19,007
Accumulated Deficit (540,329) (162,992)
Total Members' Equity (Deficit) 662,488 (118,985)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, PREFERRED MEMBERSHIP UNITS AND MEMBERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 1440151 § 492 823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Revenues
Cost of Revenues
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
General and Administrative
Sales and Marketing
Depreciation and Amortization
Impairment - Digital Assets
Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Expense)
Other Income
Total Other Income
Net Income (Loss)

Ternio, LLC
Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
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2020 2019
9385513 § 1,740,653
7,144 963 616,654
2,240,551 1,123,999
2,154,065 778,154
403,830 133,156
42,778 30,110
- 17,700
2,600,673 959,120
(360,122) 164,879
10,000
10,000
(350,122) $ 164,879

The accompanying notes‘are an,iftegral-part of these financial statements
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Temio, LLC
Statement of Membership Unitholders® Equity

Addtioral Paid In Simple Agreements
Redesmabla Prefarred Capital - Membership for Future Equity Total Members' Equity
Mambership Units Mambers' Comman Unit Opions (SAFE) Accumulated Dedcit {Dafcit)

Balarce as of December 31, 2008 s . $ . $ . s C (200656) S | 300 686)
Prefecred Membership Units Purchassd 318,126 - - - - -
Redesmabie Cumdative Praterrad Dividend 215 - - - (27.215) (27 215)
Purchased Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE) . . . 25000 . 25,000
Acdtional Paid in Captal - Membership Unit Options . . 19,007 . . 18007
Net income - - - - 164 879 164 579
Balarce as of December 31, 2010 5341 - 19,007 25,000 {162.902) (118.965)
Preferred Membership Unit purchased - - - -
Cumulative Preferred Dividend 21218 . . . (27.215) (27 215)
Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE), net of issuance costs of
007 . . . 1,009 823 . 1,008 523
Asdtionsl Paid in Captal - Membership Unit Opions - - 45,053 - - 148 288
Net Loss - - - - {350.122) (350.122)
Balarca as of December 31, 2060 3 32556 | § - $ wWes $ 1034823 § {590.329) 3 662 488




Ternio, LLC

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (Loss) S (350,122) 164,879
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net cash provided by operabing activities:
Depreciation & Amaortization 42778 30,110
Mark to market adjustment on cryptocurrency awards (8,279) (31,743)
Membership-unit option award compensation expense 148,988 19,007
Fair market value upon issuance of cryplocurrency awards - 5118
Other Current Assets (48,357) -
Digital Assets (45,516) (166,914)
TERN Cryptocurrency (15,989) (167,833)
Accounts Payable 669 (1,134)
Accrued Expenses 10,505 -
Total Adustments to reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net cash provided by operating activities: 84779 (313429)
Net cash providaed by operating activities (265,342) (148,560)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed Assets (29,430) (95,000)
Net cash provided by investing activities \%'V o ° (29,430) (95,000)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & Q%
Repayment on Member Payable @ @Q (18,528) 41,566
Proeceeds from EIDL Loan Q@ @ & 150,000 -
Proceeds from PPP Loan N @ ®@ @@ 4,280
Proceeds from Redeernable Preferred Membership @Q @@ ’L@ 8 @ . 184,780
Proceeds from Simple Agresments for Future Eq@ E @ m&gﬁ@& 177 @ @ 1,009,823 25,000
Net cash providod by financing activities @ é S @ @ 1,145,575 261,346
Net cash increase for peri © ® ® O
period @ A\ @ @ 0@7 850,802 7,786
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pariod @@ @@ Ao 42,904 35,119
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ©@ o()@ 5 893,707 3 42,904
A
Supplemen re on Non-cash Transactions
Conwversion of Equity Funding Advance Proceads 1o Redesmable Preferred ship Units S - 133,346
Preferred Membership Unit Dividends 21215 § 27,215

Nl s

S
The accompanying no@re an integral part of these financial statements



Ternio, LLC.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization

Ternio, LLC (which may be referred to as the "Company, ;" "us,” or "our") was registered in the state of Delaware on January 1,
2018. The Company provides a debit card for cryptocurrency holders to use where major credit cards are accepted. The company
issues bank accounts, debit cards and financial toolkit APls - middleware enabling cryptocurrencies to be spent at 40 million
merchants world-wide. Ternio supports multiple coins and is the only company enabling users to hold crypto until the point of sale.
Other cards take a user’s cryptocurrency, converts to fiat, and places the USD value on a card which is the equivalent of buying a
gift card. Deposit accounts made easy with a modern and intuitive interface that handles everything from tracking spend, purchasing
or selling cryptocurrencies, or transferring funds. Ternio enables companies to build and scale financial products by bringing a suite
of product APIs that will integrate seamlessly within your company's current or future technology needs. The Company is
headquartered in Georgia.

Note 2. Risks and Uncertainties

The Company has a limited operating history. The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general business and
economic conditions in the United States and globally. A host of factors beyond the Company's control could cause fluctuations in
these conditions. Adverse conditions may include, recession, downturn or otherwise, local competition or changes in consumer taste.
These adverse conditions could affect the Company's ﬁnanual condmon and the results of its operations. As of December 31, 2020,
the Company is operating as a going concemn. S

The Company participates in the cryptocurrency nndustry As such it may be exposed tochanging regulations in the industry that
could impact the financial performance of the Company because of the inherent risk of the industry and its participants. Changes in
government regulation could adversely impact.Qur business. The: Company is subjectdo Jegislation and regulation at the federal and
local levels and, in some instances, at the:state level. The ‘Federal Cémmumcatlons Commissions (FCC) and/or Congress may
attempt to change the classification of or change the way that our onlme content platforms are regulated and/or change the framework
under which Internet service providers are provided Safe Harbor for clalms of copyright infringement, introduce changes to how digital
advertising is regulated and consumer mforma’oon is: handled changmg nghts and obligations of our competitors.

1

We are subject to a highly-evolving regulatory Iandscapa and any adverSe changes to, or our failure to comply with, any laws and
regulations could adversely affect our brand, reputation, business; operatmg results, and financial condition. Our business is subject
to extensive laws, rules, regulations, policies, orders, determmat:ons directives, treaties, and legal and regulatory interpretations and
guidance in the markets in which we operate, including those govermng financial services and banking, broker-dealers and ATS,
crypto asset custody, exchange, and transfer, cross-bonder ‘and domestic money and crypto asset transmission, privacy, data
governance, data protection, cybersecurity, fraud de&ectibn payment services (including payment processing and settlement
services), consumer protection, tax, and anti- moneylaundenng Many of these legal and regulatory regimes were adopted prior to
the advent of the internet, mobile technologies, ctypto assets, and related technologies. As a result, they do not contemplate or
address unique issues associated with the cryptocurrency industry, are subject to significant uncertainty, and vary widely across U.S.
federal, state, and local and international jurisdictions. Moreover, the complexity and evolving nature of our business and the
significant uncertainty surrounding the regulation of the cryptocurrency industry requires us to exercise our judgement as to whether
certain laws, rules, and regulations apply to us, and it is possible that governmental bodies and regulators may disagree with our
conclusions. To the extent we have not complied with such laws, rules, and regulations, we could be subject to significant fines,
revocation of licenses, limitations on our products and services, reputational harm, and other regulatory consequences, each of which
may be significant and could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition. Modifications to existing
requirements or imposition of new requirements or limitations could have an adverse impact on our business.

As discussed in Note 12, COVID-19 has been determined to be a global pandemic and as a result there may be a slowdown in the
economy in the United States and globally which could adversely affect the results of the Company.

Concentrations of Risk

Cryptocurrency holdings and cash equivalents may subject the Company to a concentration of risk. The largest portion of Company
holdings of cryptocurrency are in its TERN holdings. The Company holding of TERN is 26,978,281 tokens with a cost basis of
$183,822 and 19,857,866 tokens with a cost basis of $167,833 at December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively. The Company’s cash
equivalent consists primarily of deposit account or money market funds. Certain bank deposits may at times be in excess of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Commission (FDIC) insurance limits.

The Company is heavily dependent on its business to consumer (B2C) card program, estimated at 100% of its revenue in 2020 and
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2019,
Note 3. Liquidity and Financial Condition

The Company has a limited operating history and operates as a going concern. As of December 31, 2020, the Company has relied
on money from the members. Management anticipates the Company to achieve profitable operations as they execute their business
plan.

The Company believes its current cash on hand is sufficient to meet its operating and capital requirements for at least the next twelve
months from the date these financial statements are issued.

Note 4. Basis of Presentation, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheet
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates. The most significant accounting estimates inherent in the preparation of the Company's financial statements include
estimates associated with asset valuations including the Company‘s cryptocurrency holdings, impairment analysis of intangibles,
membership unit-based compensation and awards of mtangible assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents < ;L.--;'-;:'

The Company considers all highly liquid mvestments wnh am Orlglnalkmalunty of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be
cash equivalents. From time to time, the/ Compan)fs cash'account- balanoes exceed the balances as covered by the FDIC. The
Company has never suffered a loss dueto such excessbelanoes As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Company had $893,707
and $42,904 cash on hand, respectlvely ~O) " SO)) > )

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for financial instruments under Flngndal Accountlng Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 820, Fair Value Measurements. This statbment defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. To increase consistency
and comparability in fair value measurements, ASC 829 \establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three que}g as follows:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose inputs are observable or
whose significant value drivers are observable; and

Level 3 - assets and liabilities whose significant value drivers are unobservable.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company's market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases, the
inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the fair value
measurement is required to be classified using the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Such
determination requires significant management judgment. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities,
such as cash and cash equivalents, and accounts payable, approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Receivables and Credit Policy

Trade receivables from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms, primarily requiring
payment before services are rendered. Trade receivables are stated at the amount billed to the customer. Payments of trade
receivables are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the
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earliest unpaid invoice. The Company, by policy, routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers. As a result, the Company
believes that its accounts receivable credit risk exposure is limited, and it has not experienced significant write-downs in its accounts
receivable balances

On December 31, 2020 the Company had recognized $65,799 of customer funds in the FBO virtual account (For-Benefit-Of Accounts
are accounts opened in the platform's name for the benefit of our users) under current assets as funds in transit as the funds have
not yet moved into the Ternio managed operating account. This amount was moved to the Ternio managed operating account on
January 5, 2021. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had no accounts receivable. The Company does not have any off-balance
sheet credit exposure related to any of its customers.

Cryptocurrencies

Cryptocurrencies, (including the Company's Ternio "TERN", bitcoin, and other 3rd party cryptocurrencies) are included in current
assets in the accompanying balance sheet. Cryptocurrencies purchased are recorded at cost and sale of the Company’'s
cryptocurrencies are accounted for in connection with the Company's revenue recognition policy disclosed below.

Cryptocurrencies held are accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life is not amortized but assessed for impairment annually, or more frequently, when events or changes in circumstances occur
indicating that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying amount exceeds
its fair value, which is measured using the quoted price of the cryptocurrency at the time its fair value is being measured. In testing
for impairment, the Company has the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not
that an impairment exists. If it is determined that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, a quantitative impairment test
is not necessary. If the Company concludes otherwise, it is required to perform a quantitative impairment test. To the extent an
impairment loss is recognized, the loss establishes the new obstbaSts of the asset. Subsequent reversal of impairment losses is not

>
{

permitted. AN

Purchases of cryptocurrencies by the Company are ir.iéii)ded.w&hin operating activities in thé,aocompanying statement of cash flows.
The sales of cryptocurrencies are included within operating activities in the accompanying statement of cash flows and any realized
gains or losses from such sales are included:in operating qxpfeb’s’es in the statement of operations. The Company accounts for its
gains or losses in accordance with specific identification.-However, in the absence of the ability to specifically identify the
cryptocurrency being sold, the Company will use the firstin first gut (FIFQ) method of accounting in those cases.

As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Company h’és‘,-}_$33:41,:'864; and 33591 58 in cryptocurrency, respectively. Of this, $183,822
and $167,833 is for its own TERN currency in 2020 and-201‘9},_,}@~speqigély.

Fixed Assets

‘.' ~
e\ Y/
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Fixed assets are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally
five years for computer related assets. Expenditures for renéwals and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity
or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalizgq_t;};;__&}(penditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. When
equipment is retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the balance sheet accounts and the
resultant gain or loss is reflected in income.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Management reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair
value of the assets. Based on its reviews, management determined that its Bitcoin cryptocurrency was impaired by a total of $0 and
$17,700 based upon an assessment as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company. Accordingly, under the Internal Revenue Code, all taxable income or loss flows through
to its members. Therefore, no provision for income tax has been recorded in the statements. Income from the Company is reported
and taxed to members on their individual tax returns.

The Company complies with FASB ASC 740 for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a Company's financial
statements, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-
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than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. FASB ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. Based on the Company'’s evaluation, it
has been concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the Company's financial statements.
The Company believes that its income tax positions would be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would
result in a material change to its financial position.

Leases

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company accounts for its leases under ASC 842, Leases (ASC 842). Under this guidance,
arrangements meeting the definition of a lease are classified as operating or financing leases, and are recorded on the balance sheet
as both a right of use asset and lease liability, calculated by discounting fixed lease payments over the lease term at the rate implicit
in the lease or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are increased by interest and reduced by payments each
period, and the right of use asset is amortized over the lease term. For operating leases, interest on the lease liability and the
amortization of the right of use asset result in straight-line rent expense over the lease term.

In calculating the right of use asset and lease liability, the Company elects to combine lease and non-lease components as permitted
under ASC 842. The Company excludes short-term leases having initial terms of 12 months or less from the new guidance as an
accounting policy election and recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As of December 31, 2020 the Company had leases for less than one year and as of December 31, 2019 the Company had no leases.
Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue under ASC 606, RevenUe trom Contracts with Customers. The core principle of the new revenue
standard is that a Company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods. or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects ‘{0 be entitled in exchange far those goods or services. The following
five steps are applied to achieve that core pnncuple ;j. ;-}*‘7 ~ .

Step 1: Identify the contract with the. customer 1% @& « AN
Step 2: Identify the performance obﬁgatlonsin the oomract © \

Step 3: Determine the transaction price;,” < 9 _\

Step 4: Allocate the transaction priceto the: paxfomtance obttgathns tn the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when the Company sahsﬁes a perfpnnance obligation

In order to identify the performance obligations in a contract wutb a customer the Company must assess the promised goods or
services in the contract and identify each promised good or serwce that is distinct. A performance obligation meets ASC 606's
definition of a "distinct" good or service (or bundle of goods. 6t services) if both of the following criteria are met: The customer can
benefit from the good or service either on its own or together: with other resources that are readily available to the customer (i.e., the
good or service is capable of being distinct), and the emhys promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately
identifiable from other promises in the contract (I e the ‘promise to transfer the good or service is dlstlnct within the context of the

......

contract). NN

If a good or service is not distinct, the good or service is combined with other promised goods or services until a bundle of goods or
services is identified that is distinct.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable
amounts, or both. When determining the transaction price, an entity must consider the effects of all of the following:

Variable consideration

Constraining estimates of variable consideration

The existence of a significant financing component in the contract
Noncash consideration

Consideration payable to a customer

Variable consideration is included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis. The
transaction price allocated to each performance obligation is recognized when that performance obligation is satisfied, at a point in
time or overtime as appropriate.

The company’s revenue includes sales of its cryptocurrency TERN, transaction fees generated from customers using its BlockCard
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debit card and from the licensing (white label) of its BlockCard platform to outside parties.

The transaction consideration the Company receives, if any, is non-cash cryptocurrency in many cases, which the Company
measures at fair value on the date received. For the year ended December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Company had recognized
revenue of $9,385,513 and of $1,740,653, respectively for the delivery of TERN cryptocurrency which is considered complete at the
point of exchange at the timestamped point of transaction when the deposit of the purchased asset is received.

For the white label partnerships, the transaction consideration is made up of two parts, the tri-phasic implementation stage for a non-
refundable fixed fee and revenue share of transactions after the white label partnership is implemented. The performance obligation
under the company’s white label program is considered complete once the following 3 phases of implementation are completed prior
to initializing transactions and recognizing revenue in the same manner as for the sales of TERN:

Phase 1 - Microsite setup (if needed)
Phase 2 - Compliance document compilation
Phase 3 - Bank submission approval/denial

There is currently no specific definitive guidance under GAAP or alternative accounting framework for the accounting for
cryptocurrencies recognized as revenue or held, and management has exercised significant judgment in determining the appropriate
accounting treatment. In the event authoritative guidance is enacted by the FASB, the Company may be required to change its
policies, which could have an effect on the Company's financial position and resulits from operations.

Cost of Revenue

The Company's cost of revenue consists primarily of the oost per token of its cryptocurrency TERN which is accounted for on first in
first out (FIFO) cost basis for the wallets used to purchase TERN independent of TERN Treasury holdings but is reviewed for
impairment periodically as discussed in the section Cryptocurrency above. The cost per token is obtained from third parties such as
the exchange used at the time of the transaction. Also cncluded' would be any other direct’ costs to obtain the revenue but excluding
depreciation and amortization, which are separatety stated in the Company S statement of operations.

Advertising Expenses ;:';1 N QY r ' f't~' s © \

A\ 4
KN

The Company expenses advertising costs as they afe mcun'ed m 2020 and 2019 the Company spent $403,830 and $133,156
respectively. A\

Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognizes contingent liabilities when it is probatale that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at
the date of the financial statements and the amount of the lass can be reasonably estimated. Disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements is required for loss contingencies that do ndt‘meet both these conditions if there is a reasonable possibility that a loss
may have been incurred. The Company expensesas incurred the costs of defending legal claims against the Company,

Research and Development
Research and development activities are expensed when incurred.
Software Development Costs - Internal Use

Preliminary project stage costs are expensed as they are incurred. If a decision is made to move forward with application
development, this portion of the project is to be capitalized. Training costs are expensed as incurred as well as data conversion costs.

Capitalization of costs begin when the preliminary project stage is completed and management with relevant authority implicitly or
explicitly authorize and commit to funding a project and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used
to perform the function intended. When it is no longer probable the software will be completed and placed in service no further costs
shall be capitalized and impairment is applied to existing balances. Capitalization ceases no later than the point at which the project
is substantially complete and ready for its intended use after all substantial testing is completed.

Once the development has been substantially completed, post-implementation operation stage costs including maintenance costs
are expensed as incurred.

Upgrades and enhancements are defined as modifications to existing internal-use software that result in additional functionality-that
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is, modifications to enable the software to perform tasks that it was previously incapable of performing. Upgrades and enhancements
normally require new software specifications and may require a change to all or part of the existing software specifications. In order
for costs of specified upgrades and enhancements to internal use computer software to be capitalized it must be probable that those
expenditures will result in additional functionality.

These upgrades and enhancements follow the same process of evaluation for capital and expense as typical software development
costs. As we cannot separate on a reasonably cost-effective basis between maintenance and relatively minor upgrades and
enhancements, those costs are expensed as incurred.

New software development activities trigger consideration of remaining useful lives of software that is to be replaced. When replacing
software, unamortized costs are expensed when the new software is ready for its intended use.

Web domain registration and software development costs for the BlockCard platform eligible to be capitalized were $16,689 and
$95,000 for the year ending December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively. Amortization cost was $31,926 and $19,954 for 2020 and
2019 respectively.

Patents and Trademarks

Cost to acquire a patent and trademark are recorded only if the amount spent is above capitalization thresholds. Once they do, costs
other than R&D are capitalized and amortized over the lifespan protected by the patent or trademark or its useful life, if shorter. The
company does have a patent System and Methods for Operating a Blockchain Network. It also has two trademarks: BlockCard™
and Lexicon™. No costs have been capitalized as the expendltures have not reached the capitalization threshold at the balance
sheet dates.

Membership Unit-based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based payment. awards axchanged for services at the: estlmated grant date fair value of the award.

Membership unit options issued under the Company S long-tem‘t incentive plan is grantéd with an exercise price equal to no less than
the market price of the Company's membership unit at'the date of grant and exp\i(e within 30 days after termination of agreement
with applicable suppliers. These optlons generallyVest over a thnee ye,er penod

The Company estimates the fair value of membershrp umt optlon grants\usmg the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of membership un?t-based awards represent management's best estimates and involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s dement

Expected Term - The expected term of options represents r&he penod that the Company’'s membership unit-based awards are
expected to be outstanding based on the simplified method whrch is the half-life from vesting to the end of its contractual term.

Expected Volatility - The Company computes mempershup unit price volatility over expected terms based on industry/competitor
volatility levels in absence of trading price ranges bemg readily available for the Company.

Risk-Free Interest Rate - The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon
issues with an equivalent remaining term.

Expected Dividend - The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common units and does not plan to pay
cash dividends in the foreseeable future, and, therefore, uses an expected dividend yield of zero in its valuation models.

The Company elected to account for forfeited awards as they occur, as permitted by Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-
09. Ultimately, the actual expenses recognized over the vesting period will be for those shares that vested.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all events that occurred after the balance sheet date through the date when the financial statements
were issued. See Note 12.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company continually assesses any new accounting pronouncements to determine their applicability. When it is determined that
a new accounting pronouncement affects the Company's financial reporting, the Company undertakes a study to determine the
consequences of the change to its financial statements and assures that there are proper controls in place to ascertain that the
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Company's financial statements properly reflect the change.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) in order to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by, among other provisions, recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for those leases
classified as operating leases under previous U.S. GAAP. For public companies, ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2018 (including interim periods within those periods) using a modified retrospective approach and early adoption
is permitted. In transition, entities may also elect a package of practical expedients that must be applied in its entirety to all leases
commencing before the adoption date, unless the lease is modified, and permits entities to not reassess (a) the existence of a lease,
(b) lease classification or (c) determination of initial direct costs, as of the adoption date, effectively allowing entities to carryforward
accounting conclusions under previous U.S. GAAP. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted
Improvements, which provides entities an optional transition method to apply the guidance under Topic 842 as of the adoption date,
rather than as of the earliest period presented. The Company adopted Topic 842 on January 1, 2019, using the optional transition
method to apply the new guidance as of January 1, 2019, rather than as of the earliest period presented, and elected the package of
practical expedients described above. Based on the analysis, on January 1, 2019, the Company recorded right of use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately $0.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which simplifies
the accounting for share-based payments granted to nonemployees for goods and services. Under the ASU, most of the guidance
on such payments to nonemployees would be aligned with the requirements for share based payments granted to employees. The
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted, but no earlier than an entity’s adoption date of Topic 606. The Company adopted
this new standard on January 1, 2019 and the adoption did not have a material impact on its financial statements and related
disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, "Fair: Vame Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement": (:'ASU 2018-13"), which makes a number of changes meant to add, modify
or remove certain disclosure requirements assocuated with the movement amongst or hierarchy associated with Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. This guidance is effectwe for fiscal years, and interimperiods within those fiscal years, beginning
after December 15, 2019. The Company adopted ASU 2018 13 on January 1, 2020 and its adoption did not have any impact on the
Company's financial statements and related dlsdosuws _ 1 o>

(@) < "\~\ y

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No 20‘19 12 "Incomo Taxes (Tpp:c 740) Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes
(ASU 2019-12) which is intended to sumpllfy various aspects related to acoountlng for income taxes. ASU 2019-12 removes certain
exceptions to the general principles in Topie. 740 and also. clanﬁes and amends existing guidance to improve consistent application.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim pendds within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating. the lmpact of this standard on its financial statements and related
disclosures.

~ |V

Note 5. Fixed Assets

a b *‘».‘- '

Fixed assets consisted of the following as of December 31

2020 2019
Computer equipment 63,614 50,872
Software development costs 111,689 95,000
Total cost of property and equipment 175,303 145,872
Less accumulated depreciation (77,889) (35,111)
Property and equipment, net 97,414 110,761

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $42,778 and $30,110 for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis for the periods the assets are in service.

Note 6. Other Obligations
Debt

Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
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On July 23, 2020 the Company received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan ("EIDL") for $150,000 subject to a 30 year repayment
schedule beginning 12 months after loan inception and at an interest rate of 3.75%. The monthly payments will be $731 per month
over the repayment term and can be paid back early without penalty. The collateral in which this security interest is granted includes
the following property that Company now owns or shall acquire or create immediately upon the acquisition or creation thereof: all
tangible In Process and intangible personal property, including, but not limited to: (a) inventory, (b) equipment, (c) instruments,
including promissory notes, (d) chattel paper, including tangible chattel paper and electronic chattel paper, (e) documents, (f) letter
of credit rights, (g) accounts, including health-care insurance receivables and credit card receivables, (h) deposit accounts, (i)
commercial tort claims, (j) general intangibles, including payment intangibles and software, and (k) as-extracted collateral as such
terms may from time to time be defined in the Uniform Commercial Code. The security interest Company grants includes all
accessions, attachments, accessories, parts, supplies and replacements for the Collateral, all products, proceeds and collections
thereof and all records and data relating thereto.

On April 21, 2020 an EIDL grant was received for $10,000 which is not expected to be paid back according to Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (Cares Act) guidance.

Payroll Protection Program (PPP) Loan

On May 11, 2020 the Company received a Payroll Protection Loan for $4,280. If the loan is not fully forgiven it will need to be paid
back within 2 years at an interest rate of 1.0%. No collateral was required and payments are not required until Q3, 2021.

Note 7. Accrued Performance Awards

The Company has entered into agreements for several oontractors to pay them performance awards most which vest over a one-to-
three-year period. The awards are denominated in TERN. The' company recognizes expenses over the vesting period and the liability
is adjusted to fair market value at the date of the balanoe sheet for awards not issued. The mark to market adjustment was ($8,278)
and ($31,793) for 2020 and 2019. respectively. \ .
Note 8. Membership Unitholders' Equity and_'ﬁedeemdbie Preferred _Membemhlﬁ'ﬁMts

< '.' ) JLC p @ ! A

ALY

Simple Agreements for Future Equlty(SAFE) N\ a2 &

On May 21, 2019, the Company issued SAFE agreements for future equity for fair market value of $25,000. The agreement is not
equity but provides for conversion to preferred membership units'in the €vent of an equity financing or liquidity event and also carries
a 20% discount to share price for the future equity based on- a$15mllhon post-money valuation cap. In a dissolution event the holder
will receive similar preference as preferred unitholders. '

2020 Transactions

Crowdfunded Offering

The Company held a successful crowdfunded offeftng ("Crowdfunded Offering”) of $1,070,000 of Simple Agreements for Future
Equity ("SAFEs"). The Crowdfunded Offering is being made through OpenDeal Portal Inc. (the "Intermediary" aka "Republic" or
"Republic.co”). The Intermediary will be entitled to receive a 6% commission fee of the amount raised and 2% of the securities issued
in this offering.

On November 8, 2019, the Company commenced this Crowdfunded Offering which successfully reached its minimum offering, but
had not yet received the funds from the campaign until 2020 as the campaign was elected to be extended through the summer of
2020. In 2020, the Company received $1,009,823 net of fees as they achieved the maximum amount of the offering and $0 in 2019.

At the initial closing of the Crowdfunded Offering (if the minimum amount is sold), our authorized capital membership unit will consist
of (i) 9,759,140 common shares, par value $0.000100 per share, of which 9,759,140 common shares will be issued and outstanding;
and (ii) 240,860 Series A Preferred Shares, par value $15.00 per share, of which 240,860 Series A Preferred shares will be issued
and outstanding.

The SAFEs are not currently equity interests in the Company and can be thought of as the right to receive equity at some point in the
future upon the occurrence of certain events. The securities do not entitle the Investors to any dividends. Currently, there is no specific
guideline from the FASB for the accounting treatment of the SAFE agreements. SAFE agreements can be thought of as naked
warrants for the future purchase of equity in the company. The FASB directs for warrants to be recorded as equity. Since the SAFE
agreements would not be refunded in the case the company does not issue equity in the future and because the Company is confident
it will be issuing equity in the near term, the Company has elected to treat the aggregate amount raised under the SAFE Agreements
as equity with the actual quantity of shares allocated to be determined at a later date using the guidance outlined below.
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Upon each future equity financing of greater than $1,000,000 (an "Equity Financing®), the SAFEs are convertible at the option of the
Company, into CF Shadow Series Securities, which are securities identical to those issued in such future Equity Financing except 1)
they do not have the right to vote on any matters except as required by law, 2) they must vote in accordance with the majority of the
investors in such future Equity Financing with respect to any such required vote and 3) they are not entitled to any inspection or
information rights (other than those contemplated by Regulation CF). The Company has no obligation to convert the SAFEs in
any/future financing.

If the Company elects to convert the SAFEs upon the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the securities, the Investor will
receive the number of CF Shadow Series Securities equal to the greater of the quotient obtained by dividing the amount the Investor
paid for the SAFEs (the "Purchase Amount") by:

(a) the quotient of $15,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of issued and outstanding shares of capital membership unit,
assuming full conversion or exercise of all convertible and exercisable Securities then outstanding, including shares of convertible.
preferred membership unit and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants to purchase capital membership unit, but
excluding (i) the issuance of all shares of capital membership unit reserved and available for future issuance under any of the
Company's existing equity incentive plans, (ii) convertible promissory notes issued by the Company, (iii) any Simple Agreements for
Future Equity, including the Securities (collectively, "Safes"), and (iv) any equity Securities that are issuable upon conversion of any
outstanding convertible promissory notes or Safes,

OR

(b) the lowest price per share of the Securities sold in such Equity Financing multiplied by 80%. The price (either (a) or (b))
determined immediately above shall be deemed the "First Financing Price” and may be used to establish the conversion price of the
Securities at a later date, even if the Company does not ohdose toconvert the Securities upon the first Equity Financing following
the issuance of the Securities. The preferential or dlscounted rate isincluded as standard part of the SAFE agreements for downside
protection for the investor in case of a subsequent rouﬂd ata dnseounted valuation.

If the Company elects to convert the SAFEs upon an Equlty Fmanc:ng after the first Equlty Fmancmg following the issuance of the
Securities, the Investor will receive the number: of CF Shaqu Senes Securltles equal to the quotient obtained by dividing: (a) the
Purchase Amount by (b) the First Flnancmg Pﬂce . Q)

In the case of an initial public offering of the Gompany ("iPO“) or Chaque of Control (see below) (either of these events, a "Liquidity
Event") of the Company prior to any Equity Financing, the Investorwill reoedle at the option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment
equal to the Purchase Amount (subject to the following paragraph) or.(ii) a number of shares of common membership unit of the
Company equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the quotient of* (a) $15,000,000 divided by (b) the number, as of immediately
prior to the Liquidity Event, of shares of the Company's capntal membershlp unit (on an as-converted basis) outstanding, assuming
exercise or conversion of all outstanding vested and unveste optlons warrants and other convertible securities, but excluding: (i)
shares of common membershlp unit reserved and avallable future grant under any equity incentive or similar plan; (ii) any Safes;
and (iii) convertible promissory notes. X [

In connection with a cash payment described in mepfecedmg paragraph, the Purchase Amount will be due and payable by the
Company to the Investor immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event. If there are not enough
funds to pay the Investors and holders of other SAFEs (collectively, the "Cash-Out Investors") in full, then all of the Company’s
available funds will be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the Cash-Out Investors in proportion to their Purchase
Amounts. "Change of Control" as used above and throughout this section, means (i) a transaction or transactions in which any person
or group becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities entitled to elect the Company's board
of directors, (ii) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company, in which the outstanding voting security holders of the
Company fail to retain at least a majority of such voting securities following such transaction(s) or (iii) a sale, lease or other disposition
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

In the case of a Liquidity Event following any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the option of the Investor, either (i) a cash
payment equal to the Purchase Amount (as described above) or (ii) a number of shares of the most recently issued preferred
membership unit equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the First Financing Price. Shares of preferred membership unit granted
in connection therewith shall have the same liquidation rights and preferences as the shares of preferred membership unit issued in
connection with the Company's most recent Equity Financing.

If there is a Dissolution Event (see below) before the Securities terminate, the Company will distribute, subject to the preferences
applicable to any series of preferred membership unit then outstanding, all of its assets legally available for distribution with equal
priority among the Investors, all holders of other SAFEs (on an as converted basis based on a valuation of common membership unit
as determined in good faith by the Company's board of directors at the time of the Dissolution Event) and all holders of common
membership unit. A "Dissolution Event” means (i) a voluntary termination. of operations by the Company, (ii) a general assignment
for the benefit of the Company's creditors or (iii) any other liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (excluding a Liquidity
Event), whether voluntary or involuntary.
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Redeemable Preferred Membership Units

On January 15, 2019, the Company issued 240,860 shares of 8% Series A $1.50 par value preferred membership unit for fair market
value of $318,126. The membership units have full voting rights and antidilutive rights upon new issuances up to $15 million valuation
and no anti-dilutive rights above that level. There is a cumulative preferred dividend which as of December 31, 2020 is $ 54,430.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the proceeds shall be paid as follows: Owners of the
Preferred Units will be entitled to return of their capital contribution (i.e., the purchase price) plus accrued dividends in respect of the
Units before owners of the Company's Preferred units will be entitled to return on their capital contributions in respect of the Preferred
units. Upon a liquidation event and after the owners of Preferred units have received a return of their capital contributions, all owners
of the Company’s membership interests (i.e., preferred and Common units) will share in the remaining proceeds of the Company pro
rata based on the number of units owned. A merger or consolidation (other than one in which stockholders of the Company own a
majority by voting power of the outstanding units of the surviving or acquiring corporation) and a sale, lease, transfer, exclusive
licensor other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company will be treated as a liquidation event (a "Deemed
Liquidation Event"), thereby triggering payment of the liquidation preferences described above.

Except with respect to certain protective provisions, the holders of Preferred vote together with Common stock on all matters on an
as- converted basis. So long as ten (10%) percent, of Preferred Units are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or approval
required under the Company’s Charter or Bylaws, the Company will not, without the written consent of the holders of at least 51% of
the Company's Preferred Units, either directly or by amendment, merger, consolidation, or otherwise: (i) liquidate, dissolve / wind-up
the affairs of the Company, or effect any merger or consolidation or any other Deemed Liquidation Event; (ii) amend, alter, or repeal
any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in a manner adverse to the Preferred Units; (iii) create or authorize the
creation of or issue any other security convertible into or exercisable for any equity security, having rights, preferences or privileges
senior to or on parity with the Preferred Units, or increase the autbOrlz,ed number of shares of Preferred Units; (iv) purchase or redeem
or pay any dividend on any capital stock prior to the Preferred-Units, other than units repurchased from former employees or
consultants in connection with the cessation of their employméntjsemoes at the lower of fair market value or cost; other than as
approved by the Board; or (v) create or authorize the cteatlon of any debt security if the Company's aggregate indebtedness would
exceed $250,000 other than equipment leases or hank lines'of credit unless such debt securlty has received the prior approval of the
Board of Directors; (vii) create or hold memberst‘up interasbe in any subsidiary that is not awholly-owned subsidiary or dispose of any
subsidiary stock or all or substantially all of any subsudtary apseis ork(vu) mcrease Qr decrease the size of the Board of Directors.

AN

In the event that the Company issues addmonal securmes at a purchase pnqe less than the current Preferred Units conversion price,
such conversion price shall be adjusted in-accordance with the fol!owfng formula "Typical" weighted average: CP2= CP1'(A+B) /
(A+C) CP2=Preferred Unit Conversion Price’in effect lmmedlately after new issue. CP1=Preferred Unit Conversion Price in effect
immediately prior to new issue. A=Number of units of Class A.and Class B units deemed to be outstanding immediately prior to new
issue (includes all shares of outstanding Class A and Class B units; ‘albunits of outstanding preferred units on an as-converted basis,
and all outstanding options on an as-exercised basis; and does not include any convertible securities converting into this round of
financing). B=Aggregate consideration received by the Corporation with respect to the new issue divided by CP1C=Number of
membership units issued in the subject transaction. The, followmg issuances shall not trigger anti-dilution adjustment:(i) securities
issuable upon conversion of any of the Preferred Units; or as a dividend or distribution on the Preferred Units; (ii) securities issued
upon the conversion of any debenture, warrant, optnon, or other convertible security; (iii) Preferred units issuable upon a unit split,
unit dividend, or any subdivision of units of Preferred -and (iv) units of Preferred units (or options to purchase such units of Preferred
units) issued or issuable to employees or directors of, or consultants to, the Company pursuant to any plan approved by the
Company's Board of Directors.

Each Preferred Unit will automatically be converted into Common units at the then applicable conversion rate in the event of the
closing of a firm commitment underwritten public offering with a price of three (3x) times the Original Purchase Price (subject to
adjustments for stock dividends, splits, combinations and similar events) and gross proceeds to the Company of not less than
$30,000,000 (a "QPQ"), or (ii) upon the written consent of the holders of 51%of the Preferred Units.

Unless prohibited by Delaware law governing distributions to stockholders, the Series A Preferred shall be redeemable at the option
of holders of at least 51% of the Series A Preferred commencing any time after five (5) years at a price equal to the Original Purchase
Price plus all accrued but unpaid dividends. Upon a redemption request from the holders of the required percentage of the Series A
Preferred, all Series A Preferred shares shall be redeemed.

Note 9. Membership Options, Warrants and Restricted Common Units

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company's shareholders approved its 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2019 Plan"),
which allows the Company to issue options to purchase common shares of the Company at fair market value. As of December 31,
2019 450,000 options were granted to contractors of the Company allowing them to purchase a common membership unit at $1.50
per share. The restricted membership unit rights have a grant date fair value of approximately $562,500 or $1.25 per share and vest
over a period of three years and one month. No new options were granted in 2020.
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Membership Unit-based Compensation

The Company's membership unit-based compensation expenses recognized during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
were attributable to general and administrative expenses, which are included in the accompanying statement of operations.

The Company recognized total membership unit-based compensation expense during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, from the following categories:

Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019
Membership unit option awards under the Plan $148,988 $19,007
Total Membership unit-based compensation $148,988 $19,007

Membership Unit Incentive Plan Options

The Company estimates the fair value of the share-based option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model (the "Black-Scholes model"). Using the Black-Scholes model, the value of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is
recognized over the requisite service period in the statement of operations. The Company attributes compensation to expense using
the straight-line single option method for all options granted. The Company’s determination of the estimated fair value of share-based
payment awards on the date of grant under the 2019 Plan is affected by the following variables and assumptions:

e The grant date exercise price - the estimated market prloe of the Company’s common membership units on the date of
the grant;

e Expected option term - based on similar oompames due to lack of historical experlence with existing option holders
estimated at 3 years; @

 Estimated dividend rates - based on hlstoncal and antlc:pa'(ed drvldends ove; the hfe of the option; Legal term of the option
- grants have legal lives of continuous employmenﬂ +30°days;” |

¢ Risk-free interest rates - with matunbes that ‘approximate tbe expected Ma of the options granted;

e Calculated membership unit price volahhty calculated ‘over: the expected life of the options granted, which is calculated
based on similar company experience in the same: mdustry, 7~

e Option exercise behaviors - baséd on actual and projected emp(oyee membership unit option exercises and forfeitures.
The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur | .

The Company currently provides membership unit-based compengetion to contractors and consultants under the 2019 Plan. There
were no new membership unit options issued during the year-_bnded December 31, 2020. The Company utilized assumptions in the
estimation of fair value of membership unit-based compeqsaﬂon for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, as follows:

a IR

AD December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Dividend Yield h 0% 0%
Expected Price Volatility 152%-159% 152%-159%
Risk Free Interest Rate 1.60% 1.60%
Expected Term 3.08 Years 3.08 Years

A summary of membership unit option activity under the 2019 Plan for options to contractors, for the year ended December 31, 2020
is presented below:
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Weighted Average

Remaining
Shares Underlying  Weighted Average Contractual Term
Options Exercise Price (Years)

Outstanding at December 31, 2018 0 S0.00

Granted 450,000 $1.50

Exercised 0 $0.00

Forfeited 0 $0.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 450,000 $1.50 3

Granted 0 $0.00

Exercised 0 $0.00

Forfeited 0 $0.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 450,000 $1.50 2
Vested at December 31, 2020 105,000 $1.50 2

As of December 31, 2020 total membership unit-based compensation expense related to unvested options not yet recognized totaled
$10,495, which would fully amortize in first quarter 2021 and as of December 31, 2019 $19,007, which was fully amortized in fourth
quarter of 2019. Total compensation cost related to non-vested options unamortized is $394,505 and $541,767 in 2020 and 2019
respectively.

Note 10. Contingencies

The Company is subject at times to various claims, Iawsmts and govemmental proceedings relating to the Company's business and
transactions arising in the ordinary course of busmess. The Company cannot predict the final outcome of such proceedings. Where
appropriate, the Company vigorously defends. such claims, lawsuits and proceedmgs ‘Some of these claims, lawsuits and
proceedings seek damages, including, consequenhal eXemp}ary of:punitive damages, in amounts that could, if awarded, be
significant. Certain of the claims, lawsuits and prooeed‘ INgs arislng in ovdmary ooqrse ‘of business are covered by the Company's
insurance program. The Company manntams property and:various types of liability insurance in an effort to protect the Company
from such claims. In terms of any matters where there<is.no msumncd boverage available to the Company, or where coverage is
available and the Company maintains a retention or deducnb[e assomated with such insurance, the Company may establish an
accrual for such loss, retention or deductlble based on curfent avaflable mforrnatlon In accordance with accounting guidance, if it is
probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been mcumed as of the date of the financial statements, and the amount
of loss is reasonably estimable, then an accrual for the cost. to resolve or settle these claims is recorded by the Company in the
accompanying balance sheet. If it is reasonably possible that an asset may be impaired as of the date of the financial statement, then
the Company discloses the range of possible loss. Expenses related to the defense of such claims are recorded by the Company as
incurred and included in the accompanying statement of operabOns Management, with the assistance of outside counsel, may from
time to time adjust such accruals according to new devqlopments in the matter, court rulings, or changes in the strategy affecting the
Company's defense of such matters. On the basis of current. information, the Company does not believe there is a reasonable
possibility that any material loss, if any, will resuIU(om any claims, lawsuits and proceedings to which the Company is subject to
either individually, or in the aggregate.

The Company is not currently involved with and does not know of any pending or threatening litigation against the Company.
Note 11. Related Party Transactions
Member Payable

The Company has taken an advance from its members of $53,038 and $71,565 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively.
These advances do not have a specified maturity date, and no interest rate is specified or being charged currently.

Note 12. Subsequent Events
Other Events

The COV/D-19 pandemic could have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate, results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity, and capital investments.

The World Health Organization has declared the COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic, and the virus continues to spread in areas where
we operate and sell our products and services. The COVID-19 pandemic and similarities in the future could have a material adverse
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effect on our ability to operate, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, and capital investments. Several public health
organizations have recommended, and some local governments have implemented, certain measures to slow and limit the
transmission of the virus, including shelter in place and social distancing ordinances. Such preventive measures, that we may
voluntarily put in place, may have a material adverse effect on our business for an indefinite period of time, such as the potential shut
down of certain locations, decreased employee availability, potential border closures, disruptions to the businesses of our channel
partners, and others. Our suppliers and customers may also face these and other challenges, which could lead to a disruption in
labor, spending and consumer demand for our products and services.

These issues may also materially affect our future access to our sources of liquidity, particularly our cash flows from operations,
financial condition, capitalization, and capital investments. Although these disruptions may continue to occur, the long-term. economic
impact and near-term financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including but not limited to, possible impairment, restructuring,
and other charges, cannot be reliably quantified or estimated at this time due to the uncertainty of future developments.

Management's Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 15, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
Based on this evaluation, no additional material events were identified which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements.
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Connecting DeFi and
cryptocurrencies to banks,
cards, and other legacy
finance

INVEST IN UNBANKED TODAY!

At Unbanked, our fintech platform powers the card prog forr Web3
like Nexo, Litecoin Foundation, StormX, Stacks, and more. Currently in the market, we enable
the issuance of crypto debit cards for residents of more than 75 countries - that’s over 3.1 ... $O 00 R e

: aised

Show more

This Reg CF offering is made available through StartEngine
Capital, LLC. This investment is speculative, illiquid, and involves
ahigh degree of risk, including the possible loss of your entire
investment.

OVERVIEW ABOUT TERMS PRESS DISCUSSION INVESTING FAQS

REASONS TO INVEST

Designed to give your cryptocurrency real-world utility, our

blockchain technology enables people to buy cryptocurrency
D with a bank account or spend cryptocurrency on a debit/credit
) card.

Cryptocurrencies and DeFi are rapidly disrupting the legacy
finance ecosystem, bringing about a paradigm shift in finance.

,D Cryptocurrency adoption alone hit a market cap of over $2
Trillion dollars in March 2022.*

With over $3 million previously raised, Unbanked is currently
AMEX's first partner for NFT Cards, a VISA FastTrack

. Enablement partner, and continuing to work with industry-

“) leading customers from Paxful and Nexo to Litecoin Foundation.
We are committed to a future of advancing human freedom and
financial control.

*Market information provided by Fortune (source)

THE PITCH

We are in the middle of a “Fourth Industrial Revolution” where blockchain and digital
currencies are reinventing the global financial system and bringing in the “Web3” era. The
problem is that managing digital currency can be scary for people and have a steep learning
curve. However, many already use and understand legacy financial products like Bank
Accounts and Debit Cards. Unbanked brings together the efficiency and utility of digital
currencies with the familiarity of existing financial system. Launched in 2018, Unbanked has
grown exceptionally fast reaching $19.9 Million in revenue in 2021 and made #327 on the Inc
5000 list of fastest growing companies! Unbanked is a recent winner of the Shark Pitch
competition and has raised over $2M so far. In addition, over 20 Web3 companies license
Unbanked's platform to provide their customers with crypto powered debit cards.

Get Unbanked: It’s your currency

Unbanked offers a suite of financial products designed to give your cryptocurrency real-world
utility. Whether pairing with one of today’s leading digital payment platforms, or swiping your
card in person at one of the millions of supported locations worldwide, Unbanked puts your
money back in your hands.

UNBANKED PUTS
YOUR MONEY BACK
IN YOUR HANDS

+ 5-Minute Customer Signups
+ Buying + Selling Crypto




Debit Cards e
Seamless Connection with == /
Traditional Fintech and o -

Banking Solutions

Providing B2B2C services for Web3 companies, we offer 5-minute customer signups, buying
+ selling crypto, debit cards, rewards capabilities, and seamless connection of your crypto
with traditional fintech and banking solutions.

@BANKED

THE PROBLEM & OUR SOLUTION

Unbanked brings banking technology into
the digital currency era

After 50 years of using the same technology, we feel consumers expect more than what
traditional banks can offer. We believe people have become accustomed to the ease of
modern tech-enabled service platforms, especially as banking tech is slow, expensive, and

time consuming.

BANKING TECH IS SLOW,
EXPENSIVE, AND TIME
CONSUMING.

Unbanked introduces a new kind of banking experience that empowers everyone to
participate in the financial system—whether they choose to work with a legacy institution or
take complete control by becoming their own custodian of blockchain-based assets.

A BETTER, CHEAPER, S l
FASTER EXPERIENCE o

Integrated with

[ ¢ Pay G Pay sAmMsuNG Pay

Our platform puts mobile digital banking first; and, with blockchain technology, we're able to
provide a better, cheaper, faster experience - putting your money back in your hands.

BUY, SELL, &
BANK SEND CRYPTO
ACCOUNTS No more hidden fees and confusion

caused by exchanges. Get the bet
available rate when you buy and sell
digital currencies through Unbanked.

Bank without borders. Our globally
accessible accounts make spending,
domestic and international money
transfers, crypto purchases, and crypto
sales more convenient than ever.

Available in over 200+ countries. @
-—



el

DEBIT
* CARDS

Get a virtual and physical card to

GET transact with your crypto in the real
world and, at the same time, eliminate
excessive deposit, exchanage and
REWARDS 9

transaction fees.
Earn up to 6.38% in rewards
when you spend your crypto. (Currently for US residents only.
Additional countries coming soon.)

You can pair your card with Apple, Google, or Samsung Pay to make payments or swipe
normally. You can also fund your card with cryptocurrency, an Unbanked bank account, or at
thousands of retailers worldwide like Walmart, Walgreens, and 7-11.

StartEngine Bonus! Create your Unbanked account now and get a $10 bonus when you

deposit $100 or more!

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Using economies of scale to fuel revenue
growth

Unbanked shares in all fees generated from the users who interact with our platform either
through our card programs, bank accounts, or our white-label partnerships who pay a
licensing fee in addition to the sources below. Typically, it is a combination of factors.

@

USING ECONOMIES OF SCALE
TO FUEL REVENUE GROWTH

B2C —— Monthly — Fx — Interchange

B2B2C ——— SaaS Model —— Rev Share

While fees help us make money, we want to keep them low—and rather use economies of
scale to make money from our customers. A smaller piece of a bigger pie.

THE MARKET & OUR TRACTION

With over $2 million previously raised,
Unbanked has robust revenue growth, in a
market valued in the trillions

Cryptocurrency adoption is rapidly increasing - hitting a market cap over $2 Trillion dollars in
March 2022 and forecasting 221 Million users this year alone.

g $2 TRILLION
Market Cap Hit

\‘"nm(“,

221M USERS

Forcasted for this Year Alone

@"nnzn

We see this as a young market with lots of potential. In order to get the next 500 Million



people interacting with crypto, we believe they need tools they're familiar with—like bank
accounts and debit cards. That’s where we come in.

$1.7M $9.3M $19.9M

2019 REVENUE 2020 REVENUE 2021REVENUE

Unbanked's highest revenue month thus far is April 2021, at $2.06M,
-with cash flow doubling from January to May of that year.

At this pace, and with robust revenue growth
there's only more milestones ahead.

Unbanked is often compared to other crypto card companies, but our product is so much
more than that. Like traditional banks, we offer bank accounts that hold cash and debit cards
for spending; but like crypto companies, we enable those bank accounts to buy and withdraw
crypto, or to use that crypto and spend it on a debit card.

Debit card issuance 1 OF ONLY 12

is livein all
'VISA Fast Track Enablement Partner
50 31 for Card Issuance and Program

Management.
STATES COUNTRIES
And we believe to be the only
in EEA (imminent) as one with a crypto focus.
well as LATAM.

RANKED NO. 327

on the 2022 Inc. 5000
Annual List

FDIC insured global bank
accounts with wire, ACH,
and Plaid integration.

Supporting over

200+ More than

COUNTRIES/ 20 0RGANIZATIONS
TERRITORIES are white-labeling our platform.

We have been selected to be % ‘s first partner for NFT Cards.

Brands we are working with

@ litecoin Stacks . Storm)I @@ nexo

Global crypto wallet services enabled, accepting

©O0AD 400
O @O i 50

Based on our traction, it’s clear to us that people want more control over their finances. And
so far, customers are letting us know just how much they are getting out of our services.

“Unbanked’s global availability of their products is
unmatched. | signed up for the bank account for
purchasing ETH, plus the Unbanked card when
I'm ready to spend my ETH. Signing up took a
few seconds and now | use Ethereum anywhere.
Everyone should get an Unbanked account.”

Jason C. @BANKED

*These i may not be representative of the experience of other andis nota of future
performance or success.



WHY INVEST

Tapping into the next generation of digital
currency banking by transforming financial
access and control

The future of Unbanked is growing our customer base and entering into as many global
markets as possible, including the EU, LATAM, APAC, EMEA, Canada, and others.

W ‘
HELP US BRING BANKING N l
TECHNOLOGY INTO THE :
DIGITAL CURRENCY ERA

Doing this properly means collaborating with regulators and ensuring we adhere to local laws.
We also have an ambitious roadmap of new products and services we intend to bring to the
marketplace, some including:

WHAT’S COMING IN THE NEXT 2 YEARS!

Apply for Bank License Charter ——
® Lending and Borrowing
Both DeFi and CeFi
o
Tiered Card Offerings ° S
Debit Card &
Credit Card with Py
Crypto Rewards
@.mn-
©

Sell Crypto Function .

(Convert Crypto Assets to —e
Your Bank Account)
Buy or Hold Most Any
Crypto Asset
via Dashboard and Store

Multi-Language Support Within Unbanked Dashboard

of the Unbanked User —e

Interface
Expansion of Crypto
— Rewards Program
Direct Issuance of Card Both Debit and Credit Cards
Programs in the EU by —e
Becoming EMI Issuer

Expansion of Card Programs
[ for Residents in the EU,

{ ‘ LATAM, APAC, EMEA

s Introduction of
o e ot 2 Self-Custodial Wallet Support
v m et ot SN in Mobile App. Start with i0S,
: Expand to Android
—————— W
-~ —— o— Bill Pay with FIAT or Crypto

2 2= o Business Bank Accounts
Launch of at Least 10 New
White-Label Partner Card R

Programs

° Purchase Crypto Assets
with Credit/Debit Card

DeFi Lending/Borrowing
Protocol

Unbanked Public Profile for ﬂ
Accepting Crypto Pay 15 =




Expansion into NFT Space

—e

Whew, that’s a lot!

*The information included above is forward looking information. Please refer to our risk factors section in our Form C and

to our Forward Looking Information Legend included in our Terms section on this page.

Our founders believe financial access and control is a human right. The fact that it can be
enabled through the blockchain led them to rebel against the status quo, which we believe
has plagued traditional banking for years. Now’s the time to bring banking technology into the
digital currency era. Invest in Unbanked today, and invest in a future of financial control.

T'S YOUR CURRENCY

ABOUT

HEADQUARTERS VALUATION

3010 HAVEN RESERVE $115M

ALPHARETTA, GA 30004

At Unbanked, our fintech platform powers the card p for Web3

like

Nexo, Litecoin Foundation, StormX, Stacks, and more. Currently in the market, we enable the
issuance of crypto debit cards for residents of more than 75 countries - that’s over 3.1 billion

people.

TEAM

Ian Kane

Co-CEO, Director and Co-Founder

Daniel Gouldman
Co-CEO, Director and Co-Founder

1 have worked in technology & digital media for over 15
years with a heavy focus on business development,
sales, and strategy. My career started as the 1st
employee in a media startup which grew into a $50mm
ayear business during my tenure. I had the opportunity
to work in both early-stage and mature organizations,
be a part of acquisitions on the buy and sell side, and
drive go-to-market strategy for various data and media
products.

As an advisor and investor in other ad tech companies, I
always look to create value and continually broaden my

When I was 17 years old - I was homeless. I lived out of
my car, worked two jobs and found a way to graduate
high school.

20 years later - I was able to be in a position to work for
myself. T now own several businesses and hope to
make a difference for others over my next 20.

I'm a highly political person with an avid interest in
geopolitics, history and business. I'm more concerned
with doing what's right than what's popular.

of the hanging

Mv 00

background enables me to bring unique insight and
experience to the next set of challenges I face.

00

Keith Johnson
General Manager

Keith Johnson is a disciplined and
results driven Business Partner and
engineer with demonstrated
achievement in product
management, strategy, and
business development. Mr.
Johnson has led both hardware,
software, and managed services
product teams with annual revenue
in excess of $100M dollars. Keith
has proven credibility to create
bottom-line oriented product
roadmaps and business plans.

Corey Ballou
CTO0

Mr. Ballou oversees the

Anne Blanchard
Head of Human Resources

I have worked in Fintech,

of L core
products. BlockCard is Unbanked’s
US-based cryptocurrency debit
card that lets you spend your
crypto anywhere.

Mr. Ballou is a seasoned developer
that has been custom-building
websites and applications for over
two decades. Mr. Ballou has five
years of fast-paced

ing and Digital Media for
over 15 years. I've had the benefit
of working for both mature
companies and startups with a
heavy focus on HR, Operations,
Business Development, & Sales.
Recently I have allocated some
time on advising startups in a few
categories. I always seek a
challenge and the opportunity to

experience at two leading design

and davalnnmant adanciac in

learn ing new. Whether it is
HR, publishing, digital media or



Mark Morales
Director

Mark Morales was born and raised
in Austin, Texas. He began his
career as an Assistant District
Attorney after graduating from the
Texas Tech School of Law in 2001.
In his lengthy career, he has been
honored by many awards and
recognitions. Mark was nominated
by his peers and then selected by
Thompson Reuters to be featured
in Texas Monthly magazine as a
SUPER LAWYER in 2016. Mr.
Morales has spent the majority of
his career, defending citizens
accused of crimes. For the last 5
years, Mr. Morales has been a self-
employed attorney under Mark
Morales and Associates, which is
his principal business.

TERMS

Unbanked

Overview

Breakdown
MIN IN

$250.00

)ISCOUNT RATE @
20.0%

CoN RIGGER

$1,000,000.00

SEC Recent Filing
Offering Memorandum

Risks

e v g
Charlotte followed by an additional
six years working on building and
launching startups for some
amazing companies. Most notable
is his work as a lead developer for
.CO Internet. Briefly following a
successful Super Bowl ad launch
with partner GoDaddy, .CO was
sold to Neustar for $109M in 2014.
Mr. Ballou has owned and operated
his own web development
consultancy since 2012. Since
then, Corey has had the pleasure of
working with several successful
startups to build out their custom
web applications.

JATION CAP @
$115M

Simple Agreement for
Future Equity

EC JUITY

Class B Common Stock

Company : Unbanked, Inc.

even dabbling In cryptocurrency - L
am always open to connecting with
those interested in building
something new.

Corporate Address

Offering Minimum :

Offering Maximum :

Minimum Investment Amount

30120 HAVEN RESERVE, ALPHARETTA, GA 30004

$10,000.00

$2,764,218.76

: $250.00

(perinvestor)

Terms

Offering Type :

Type of Equity Converted Into :

Conversion Trigger :

Crowdfunding Simple Agreement for Future Equity

Class B Common Stock

$1,000,000.00



Maturity Date : Two years from final closing
Valuation Cap : $115,000,000.00
Discount Rate : 20.0%

Annual Interest Rate : 0.%

What is a Convertible Note?

A convertible note offers you the right to receive Class B Common Stock in Unbanked, Inc..
The amount of Class B Common Stock you will receive in the future will be determined at
the next equity round in which the Company raises at least $1,000,000.00 in a qualified
equity financing. The highest conversion price per security is set based on a
$115,000,000.00 Valuation Cap or if less, then you will receive a 20.0% discount on the
price the new investors are paying. You also receive 1.0% interest per year added to your
investment. When the maturity date is reached, if the note has not converted then you are
entitled to receive Class B Common Stock equal to your investment and interest back at a
price per security determined by dividing the Valuation Cap by the aggregate number of
outstanding equity securities of the Company as of immediately prior (on a fully diluted
basis).

Irregular Use of Proceeds

The Company will not incur any irregular use of proceeds.

PRESS

Coinspeaker
Unbanked’s Bankers NFT Drop Isn’t Just About Owning Digital Art:
It Has a Real DeFi Utility

Coinspeaker

GlobeNewswire
Blockchain Powered Fintech Company, Unbanked, Ranks No. 327
on the 2022 Inc. 5000 Annual List

,’Giut_w—‘r‘\u.wnw—

COINTELEGRAPH

Projects are collecting Toys for Tots crypto donations this holiday
season

BITCOINIST

EIBITCOINIST Fintech Entrepreneurs L i lockchain Cards with Unbanked

View Article

BLOCKONOMI
Ternio & Blockcard L k is to Unbanked, A Next
Generation Financial Solution

B sLockoNOMI

Show More Press

JOIN THE DISCUSSION

What's on your mind?



0/2500

Ice breaker! What brought you
to this investment?

HOW INVESTING WORKS

Cancel anytime before 48 hours before a rolling close or the offering end date.

O
SIGN SUBMIT FUNDS IN FUNDS FUNDS
up ORDER TRANSIT RECEIVED INVESTED

We want you to succeed and get the most out of your money by offering rewards and
memberships!

Your info is your info. We take pride in keeping it that way!

T
Invest in over 200 start-ups and collectibles!

How much can I invest? v

When will I receive my shares? v

What will the return on my investment be? v

Can I cancel my investment? v

What is the difference between Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation A+? v

More FAQs -
Get To Know Us Let's Work Together Need Help
Our Team Raise Capital Contact Us
Careers Scout: Refer A Startup Help Center

start /1 _
englneo Blog Success Stories

Partnerships
@ 2023 All Rights Reserved

2 Download on the

o App Store

0O v @ © Terms of Use Privacy Policy Disclaimer Annual Reports Form CRS

Important Message
IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. INVESTMENTS ON
STARTENGINE ARE SPECULATIVE, ILLIQUID, AND INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

www.StartEngine.com is a website owned and oper y StartEngine Crowdfunding, Inc. (“StartEngine”), which is neither a registered broker-

dealer, investment advisor nor funding portal.

Unless indicated otherwise with respect to a particular issuer, all

curities-related activity is conducted by regulated affiliates of StartEngine: StartEngine Capital, LLC, a funding portal registered here with the US Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) and here as a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), or StartEngine Primary, LLC, a broker-dealer registered with the SEC and FINRA/SIPC . You can review the background of
our broker-dealer and our investment professionals on FINRA's B
with the

erCheck here. Star

Engine Secondary is an alternative trading system regulated by the SEC and operated by StartEngine Primary, LLC, a broker dealer registered
C and explanatory brochures are available upon request by contacting SIPC at (20:

and FINRA. StartEngine Primary, LLC is a member

Investment opportunities posted and accessible through the site are of three types:

1) Regulation A offerings (JOBS Act Title IV; known as Regulation A+), which are offered to non-accredited and accredited investors alike. These offerings are made through StartEngine Primary, LLC (unless otherwise indicated). 2)
Regulation D offerings (Rule 506(c)), which are offered only to accredited investors. These offerings are made through StartEngine Primary, LLC. 3) Regulation Crowdfunding offerings (JOBS Act Title III), which are offered




dited i lik i through StartEngine Capital, LLC. Some of these offerings are open to the general public, however there are important differences and risks.

Any securities offered on this website have not been approved by any gulatory its affiiates do not pr y adviceor
recommendation and donot provideanyLegal o e advie ithrespect 0 any securtis. Al secuiies sted on s st are beingofered by, and all informationincluded o this ie i th responsiilty o, the applicablefsuer of
ot verif racy or ofany information. Nether StatEngine nor any oftsofficers,directors, agents and employees makes any warranty, express orimplied,of any

kind whatsoever related to the ad accuracy, or any ion on this site or the use of this site dditional here.

By accessing this site and any pages on this ite, you agree to be bound by our Terms of use and Privacy Policy, as may be amended from time to time without notice or liabilty.

Canadian Investors Investment opportunities posted and accessible through the site will not be offered to Canadian Potential ult their legal, tax and financial advisors before
investing. The securities offered on this site are not offered in jurisdictions where public solicitation for offerings is not permitted; it is solely your responsibility to comply with =] regulations of your country of residence.

California Investors Only - Do Not Sell My Personal Information (800-317-2200). StartEngine does not sell personal information. For all customer inquiries, please write

Reg A+ offeing s made available through i Inc. This investment lative, lliquid, and involves a high degree ofrisk, i P of your For more
information about this offering, please view cireular and risk associated with this offering.




EXHIBIT D TO FORM C
VIDEO TRANSCRIPT
Main Video: The Unbanked Company Story

My name is Ian Kane. I'm Daniel Goldman, Keith Johnson. I'm Corey Blue. I'm Anne Blanchard.
At Unbanked, we believe that financial access and control is a fundamental human right, best
empowered by the blockchain. We're bridging the world of crypto and digital currencies to the
traditional banking and fintech systems that are out there and infrastructure that are already
exists. We're talking about the concept of how you can gain back control of your funds and no
longer have it sitting with some central intermediary.

[ am actually from a third world country, and I know the benefits of what Unbanked is doing
and, and not having, uh, a basic, you know, bank account in, in some countries is sort of
alarming. So, what makes Unbanked special is the fact that we are able to bridge the connection
between the crypto world of blockchain, to the one-and-a-half trillion dollar marketplace to
traditional legacy systems like debit cards, bank accounts. We're Visa’s fast-track enablement
partner. We deal in cryptocurrency, but we deal in traditional financial products.

[ think what if things that make us most unique is our ability to take our technology and
empower other companies within the crypto ecosystem to get all the same benefits from our
cards, our bank accounts, our 24/7 customer support, and our compliance team. It's an
important solution that we're offering. So that in and of itself keeps me going, really building
products that delight people, that excite people, and that are really are meaningful. What gets
me out of bed in the morning is knowing that Unbanked has the opportunity to be a billion-
dollar company.

We're very focused on continuing to build our footprint, and build a global platform that
empowers tens of millions, not billions of people all across the world, to have more control over
the way they send, receive, or spend money. The mission of Unbanked is to globally empower
everybody to be able to get on a platform, share, trade, spend, earn without some overarching
global authorities trying to nickel and dime them. There’s a global economy, and there are
billions of people who are not able to participate in that global economy simply because they
don't have the access. And that right there is the biggest problem.

Everyone will be able to choose to be their own bank. Every bank and every financial services
company is gonna have to fight to have that customer. Unbanked is going to change banking for
hundreds of millions of people across the world, using blockchain technology.

Get Unbanked: It’s your currency Section

Financial access and control. It's a fundamental human right. Cryptocurrencies make the utility
of money better, faster, and more secure.

The fourth industrial revolution is here and you can be a part of it.

It's time to get Unbanked.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required to pay to
StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 5.5-13% (five and one-half to thirteen) commission based on
the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement of funds from escrow
at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in securities of the Issuer identical to
those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally,
the issuer must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine
Capital, if any, will be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the
securities being offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, investors are also required to pay
StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 0-3.5% (zero to three and a half percent) service fee based on
the dollar amount of securities purchased in each investment.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the offering period to
change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any reason. Once within 48 hours of
ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason, even if they make a commitment during
this period.

Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A change in
minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management, material change to
financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the offering terms or other
information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline, investors will be given five
business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If investors do not reconfirm, their
investment will be canceled and the funds will be returned.

Hitting The Target Goal Early & Oversubscriptions

StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit 25%, 50%
and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, the issuer can create a new target
deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the new target deadline via email
and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours before the new deadline.

Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be possible if: 1) it
vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement requirements (and they do not have the
requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach

$5M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the discretion of the
issuer.

If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the
offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be canceled
and committed funds will be returned.

If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may conduct an
initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering deadline at least five
business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an
extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). StartEngine will notify



investors when the issuer meets its target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct
additional closings until the offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e In order to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users must open an
account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non- personal information including
information related to income, net worth, and other investments.

e Investor Limitations: There are no investment limits for investing in crowdfunding offerings for
accredited investors. Non-accredited investors are limited in how much they can invest on all
crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they can invest
depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and annual income. If
either their annual income or net worth is less than $107,000, then during any 12-month period, they
can invest either $2,200 or 5% of their annual income or net worth, whichever is greater. If both their
annual income and net worth are equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period,
they can mvest up to 10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is greater, but their investments
cannot exceed $107,000.



EXHIBIT F TO FORM C
ADDITIONAL CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

[See attached]



CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF SERIES A
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK OF UNBANKED, INC.

Pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, Unbanked, Inc.,
a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
(the "Corporation"), in accordance with the provisions of Section 103 thereof, does hereby submit
the following:

WHEREAS, the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation (the "Certificate of
Incorporation”) authorizes the issuance of up to 4,817,200 shares of preferred stock, par value
$.0001 per share, of the Corporation ("Preferred Stock") in one or more series, and expressly
authorizes the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board"), subject to limitations
prescribed by law, to provide, out of the unissued shares of Preferred Stock, for series of Preferred
Stock, and, with respect to each such series, to establish and fix the number of shares to be included
in any series of Preferred Stock and the designation, rights, preferences, powers, restrictions, and
limitations of the shares of such series; and

WHEREAS it is the desire of the Board to establish and fix the number of shares to be included in
a new series of Preferred Stock and the designation, rights, preferences, and limitations of the
shares of such new series.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board does hereby provide for the issue of a
series of Preferred Stock and does hereby in this Certificate of Designation (the "Certificate of
Designation") establish and fix and herein state and express the designation, rights, preferences,
powers, restrictions, and limitations of such series of Preferred Stock as follows:

1. Designation. There shall be a series of Preferred Stock that shall be designated as "Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock" (the "Series A Preferred Stock") and the number of Shares
constituting such series shall be 4,817,200. The rights, preferences, powers, restrictions, and
limitations of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be as set forth herein.

2. Defined Terms. For purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the following
meanings:

"Board" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
"Certificate of Designation" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
"Certificate of Incorporation” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

"Change of Control” means (a) any sale, lease, or transfer or series of sales,
leases, or transfers of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation; (b) any sale,
transfer, or issuance (or series of sales, transfers, or issuances) of capital stock by the
Corporation or the holders of Common Stock (or other voting stock of the Corporation) that
results in the inability of the holders of Common Stock (or other voting stock of the
Corporation) immediately prior to such sale, transfer, or issuance to designate or elect a
majority of the board of directors (or its equivalent) of the Corporation; or (c) any merger,
consolidation, recapitalization, or reorganization of the Corporation with or into another



Person (whether or not the Corporation is the surviving corporation) that results in the inability
of the holders of Common Stock (or other voting stock of the Corporation) immediately prior
to such merger, consolidation, recapitalization, or reorganization to designate or elect a
majority of the board of directors (or its equivalent) of the resulting entity or its parent
company.

"Common Stock" means the common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the
Corporation.

"Common Stock Deemed Outstanding” means, at any given time, the sum of
(a) the number of shares of Common Stock actually outstanding at such time, plus (b) the
number of shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance at such time under any stock option
or other equity incentive plans approved by the Board, regardless of whether the shares of
Common Stock are actually subject to outstanding Options at such time or whether any
outstanding Options are actually exercisable at such time, plus (¢) the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of any other Options (other than Options described in
clause (b) above) actually outstanding at such time, plus (d) the number of shares of Common
Stock issuable upon conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities actually outstanding at
such time (treating as actually outstanding any Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise
of Options actually outstanding at such time), in each case, regardless of whether the Options
or Convertible Securities are actually exercisable at such time

"Convertible Securities" means any securities (directly or indirectly)
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock, but excluding Options.

"Corporation" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

"Date of Issuance" means, for any Share of Series A Preferred Stock, the date
on which the Corporation initially issues such Share (without regard to any subsequent
transfer of such Share or reissuance of the certificate(s) representing such Share).

"Deemed Liquidation" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(b)

"Dividend Payment Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

"Junior Securities” means, collectively, the Common Stock and any other class
of securities that is specifically designated as junior to the Series A Preferred Stock.

"Liquidation” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a).

"Liquidation Value" means, with respect to any Share on any given date,
S / per share (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, recapitalizations, or
similar transaction with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock).

"Options" means any warrants or other rights or options to subscribe for or
purchase Common Stock or Convertible Securities.



"Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited
liability company, governmental authority, unincorporated organization, trust, association, or
other entity.

"Preferred Stock" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor
federal statute, and the rules and regulations thereunder, which shall be in effect at the time.

"Series A Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.2.

"Series A Preferred Stock" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.

"Series A Preferred Stock Breach" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.
"Share" means a share of Series A Preferred Stock.

"Subsidiary" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person of which a
majority of the outstanding shares or other equity interests having the power to vote for
directors or comparable managers are owned, directly or indirectly, by the first Person.

"Supermajority Interest" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.

3.  Rank. With respect to payment of dividends and distribution of assets upon liquidation,
dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, all Shares of the
Series A Preferred Stock shall rank senior to all Junior Securities.

4, Dividends.

4.1 Accrual and Payment of Dividends. From and after the Date of Issuance of any
Share, cumulative dividends on such Share shall accrue, whether or not declared by the Board
and whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of dividends, on a daily
basis in arrears at the rate of 8% per annum on the sum of the Liquidation Value thereof plus
all unpaid accrued and accumulated dividends thereon. All accrued dividends on any Share
shall be paid in cash only when, as and if declared by the Board out of funds legally available
therefor or upon a liquidation or redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock in accordance
with the provisions of Section 5: provided, that to the extent not paid on the last day of March,
June, September, and December of each calendar year (each such date, a "Dividend Payment
Date"), all accrued dividends on any share shall accumulate and compound on the applicable
Dividend Payment Date whether or not declared by the Board and shall remain accumulated,
compounding dividends until paid pursuant hereto. All accrued and accumulated dividends
on the Shares shall be prior and in preference to any dividend on any Junior Securities and
shall be fully declared and paid before any dividends are declared and paid, or any other
distributions or redemptions are made, on any Junior Securities, other than to (a) declare or
pay any dividend or distribution payable on the Common Stock in shares of Common Stock
or (b) repurchase Common Stock held by employees or consultants of the Corporation upon
termination of their employment or services pursuant to agreements providing for such
repurchase.




4.2  Participating Dividends. Subject to Section 4.1, in addition to the dividends
accruing on the Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof, if the Corporation
declares or pays a dividend or distribution on the Common Stock, whether such dividend or
distribution is payable in cash, securities, or other property, including the purchase or
redemption by the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries of shares of Common Stock for cash,
securities, or property, but excluding (1) any dividend or distribution payable on the Common
Stock in shares of Common Stock and (i1) any repurchases of Common Stock held by
employees or consultants of the Corporation upon termination of their employment or services
pursuant to agreements providing for such repurchase, the Corporation shall simultaneously
declare and pay a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock on a pro rata basis with the
Common Stock determined on an as-converted basis assuming all Shares had been converted
pursuant to Error! Bookmark not defined.Error! Reference source not found. as of
immediately prior to the record date of the applicable dividend (or if no record date is fixed,
the date as of which the record holders of Common Stock entitled to such dividends are to be
determined).

4.3 Partial Dividend Payments. Except as otherwise provided herein, if at any time
the Corporation pays less than the total amount of dividends then accrued and accumulated
with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, such payment shall be distributed pro rata among
the holders thereof based upon the aggregate accrued and accumulated but unpaid dividends
on the Shares held by each such holder.

5. Liquidation.

5.1 Liquidation; Deemed Liquidation.

(a) Liquidation. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (collectively with a Deemed Liquidation,
a "Liquidation"), the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding
shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution
to its stockholders, before any payment shall be made to the holders of Junior Securities
by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount in cash equal to the aggregate
Liquidation Value of all Shares held by such holder, plus all unpaid accrued and
accumulated dividends on all such Shares (whether or not declared).

(b) Deemed Liquidation. The occurrence of a Change of Control (such
event, a "Deemed Liquidation") shall be deemed a Liquidation for purposes of this
Section 5. Upon the consummation of any such Deemed Liquidation, the holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock shall, in consideration for cancellation of their Shares, be
entitled to the same rights such holders are entitled to under this Section 5 upon the
occurrence of a Liquidation, including the right to receive the full preferential payment
from the Corporation of the amounts payable with respect to the Series A Preferred
Stock under Section 5.1(a) hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this
Section 5.1(b) shall limit in any respect the right of any holder of Series A Preferred
Stock to elect the benefits of either this Section 5 in connection with any Change of
Control.




5.2 Participation With Junior Securities on Liquidation. In addition to and after
payment in full of all preferential amounts required to be paid to the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock upon a Liquidation under this Section 5 (including upon a Deemed
Liquidation under Section 5.1(b)), the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock then
outstanding shall be entitled to participate with the holders of shares of Junior Securities then
outstanding, pro rata as a single class based on the number of outstanding shares of Junior
Securities on an as-converted basis held by each holder as of immediately prior to the
Liquidation, in the distribution of all the remaining assets and funds of the Corporation
available for distribution to its stockholders.

5.3 Insufficient Assets. If upon any Liquidation (or Deemed Liquidation) the
remaining assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders shall be
insufficient to pay the holders of the Shares of Series A Preferred Stock the full preferential
amount to which they are entitled under Section 5.1, (a) the holders of the Shares shall share
ratably in any distribution of the remaining assets and funds of the Corporation in proportion
to the respective full preferential amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the
Series A Preferred Stock in the aggregate upon such Liquidation (or Deemed Liquidation) if
all amounts payable on or with respect to such Shares were paid in full, and (b) the Corporation
shall not make or agree to make any payments to the holders of Junior Securities.

5.4  Notice Requirement. In the event of any Liquidation (or Deemed Liquidation),
the Corporation shall, within ten (10) days of the date the Board approves such action, or no
later than twenty (20) days of any stockholders' meeting called to approve such action, or
within twenty (20) days of the commencement of any involuntary proceeding, whichever is
earlier, give each holder of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock written notice of the proposed
action. Such written notice shall describe the material terms and conditions of such proposed
action, including a description of the stock, cash, and property to be received by the holders
of Shares upon consummation of the proposed action and the date of delivery thereof. If any
material change in the facts set forth in the initial notice shall occur, the Corporation shall
promptly give written notice to each holder of Shares of such material change.

6. Voting.

6.1 Voting Generally. Except as otherwise required by law, or as otherwise
provided by a resolution adopted by the Board or elsewhere in this Certificate of
Designation, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any
matter. In matters where holders of Series A Preferred Stock are permitted or required to
vote, each holder of outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote
with holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock, voting together as a single class
(whether at a meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, by written action of stockholders
in lieu of a meeting or otherwise). In any such vote, each Share of Series A Preferred Stock
shall be entitled one vote. Each holder of outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock
shall be entitled to notice of all stockholder meetings (or requests for written consent) in
accordance with the Corporation's bylaws.

6.2  Election of Directors. In the election of directors to the Corporation, for so long
as the holders of outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock (and their Permitted




Transferees own in the aggregate at least 2 % of the outstanding shares of Common Stock on
a fully diluted, as-converted basis (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
recapitalizations, or similar transaction), the holders of outstanding Shares of Series A
Preferred Stock, voting as a separate class, shall be entitled to elect by majority vote (with
each Share of Series A Preferred Stock entitled to one vote) one individual to the Board (such
individual, the "Series A Director"). A Series A Director may be removed at any time as a
director on the Board (with or without cause) upon, and only upon, the written request of the
holders of the outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock (voting as a separate class by
majority vote with each Share of Series A Preferred stock entitled to one vote). In the event
that a vacancy is created on the Board at any time due to the death, disability, retirement,
resignation, or removal of a Series A Director, then the holders of the outstanding Shares of
Series A Preferred Stock (voting as a separate class by majority vote with each Share of Series
A Preferred stock entitled to one vote) shall have the right to designate an individual to fill
such vacancy. In the event that the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred stock shall fail to
designate in writing a representative to fill the vacant Series A Director seat on the Board, and
such Board seat shall remain vacant until such time as the holders of Shares of Series A
Preferred stock elect an individual to fill such seat in accordance with this Section 6.2, and
during any period where such seat remains vacant, the Board nonetheless shall be deemed
duly constituted.

6.3  Other Special Voting Rights. Without the prior written consent of holders of not
less than two-thirds of the then total outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock (a
"Supermajority Interest"), voting separately as a single class with one vote per Share, in
person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or at an annual or a special meeting of
such holders, and any other applicable stockholder approval requirements required by law, the
Corporation shall not take, and shall cause its Subsidiaries not to take or consummate, any of
the actions or transactions described in this Section 6.3 (any such action or transaction without
such prior written consent being null and void ab initio and of no force or effect) as follows:

(a) other than as contemplated by this Certificate of Designation, amend,
alter, modify, or repeal the Certificate of Incorporation, this Certificate of Designation,
or the by-laws of the Corporation, including the amendment of the Certificate of
Incorporation by the adoption or amendment of any Certificate of Designation or similar
document, or amend the organizational documents of any Subsidiary;

(b) increase the authorized number of directors constituting the Board from
three; or

(c) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

7. Breach of Obligations.

7.1 Series A Preferred Stock Breach. A breach by the Corporation of the rights,
preferences, powers, restrictions, and limitations of the Series A Preferred Stock set forth
herein shall mean the occurrence of one or more of any of the events and conditions set forth
in this Section 7.1 (each such event or condition, a "Series A Preferred Stock Breach"),
whether such event or condition occurs voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law or




pursuant to any judgment, order, decree, rule, or regulation and regardless of the reason or
cause of such event or condition.

(a) Nonpayment of Dividends. The failure of the Corporation to pay any
dividend when due pursuant to Section 4.1, whether or not such payment is legally
permissible or is otherwise prohibited.

(b) Nonpayment of Redemption or Liquidation Payments. The failure of the
Corporation to make any liquidation payment when due pursuant to Section 5, in each
case whether or not such payment is legally permissible or is otherwise prohibited.

(c) Breach of Veto Rights. The Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries
breaches or otherwise fails to perform or observe any of the covenants or agreements
contained in Section 6.3, including by attempting to take any action requiring the
affirmative consent of a Supermajority Interest of the holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock without first obtaining such consent.

(d)  Bankruptcy or Insolvency. The Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries (1)
becomes insolvent or admits its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due;
(1) becomes subject, voluntarily or involuntarily, to any proceeding under any domestic
or foreign bankruptcy or insolvency law, which is not fully stayed within seven (7) days
or is not dismissed or vacated within forty-five (45) days after filing; (ii1)) makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (iv) has a receiver, trustee, custodian,
or similar agent appointed by order of any court of competent jurisdiction to take charge
of or sell any material portion of its property or business.

7.2 Consequences of Breach. In addition to any other rights which a holder of Shares
of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled under any other contract or agreement and any other
rights such holder may have pursuant to applicable law, the holders of Shares of Series A
Preferred Stock shall have the rights and remedies set forth in this Section 7.2 on the
occurrence of a Series A Preferred Stock Breach.

(a) Automatic Redemption on Bankruptcy. If a Series A Preferred Stock
Breach described in Section 7.1(d) has occurred, all of the then outstanding Shares of
Series A Preferred Stock shall be subject to redemption immediately without any action
required by the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock, for a price per Share equal
to the Series A Redemption Price.

8.  Reissuance of Series A Preferred Stock. Any Shares of Series A Preferred Stock
redeemed, converted, or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any Subsidiary shall be
cancelled and retired as authorized and issued shares of capital stock of the Corporation and no
such Shares shall thereafter be reissued, sold, or transferred.

9.  Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices, requests, consents, claims,
demands, waivers, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
to have been given: (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt): (b) when
received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested);
(c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail of a PDF document (with confirmation of transmission)



if sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day if sent after
normal business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent (a)
to the Corporation, at its principal executive offices and (b) to any stockholder, at such holder's
address at it appears in the stock records of the Corporation (or at such other address for a
stockholder as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 9).

10. Amendment and Waiver. No provision of this Certificate of Designation may be
amended, modified, or waived except by an instrument in writing executed by the Corporation and
Mark Morales, and any such written amendment, modification, or waiver will be binding upon the
Corporation and each holder of Series A Preferred Stock; provided, that no such action shall
change or waive (a) the definition of Liquidation Value, (b) the rate at which or the manner in
which dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock accrue or accumulate or the times at which such
dividends become payable pursuant to Section 4, or (c) this Section 10, without the prior written
consent of each holder of outstanding Shares of Series A Preferred Stock; provided, further, that
no amendment, modification, or waiver of the terms or relative priorities of the Series A Preferred
Stock may be accomplished by the merger, consolidation, or other transaction of the Corporation
with another corporation or entity unless the Corporation has obtained the prior written consent of
the holders in accordance with this Section 10.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate of Designation is executed on behalf of the Corporation
by its President this [DATE].

Unbanked, Inc.

By:

Daniel Gouldman,
Director

By:

lan Kane,
Director,

By:
Mark Morales,
Director,
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
UNBANKED, INC,

ARTICLE |
NAME OF THE CORPORATION

The name of the corporation is Unbanked, Inc. (the “Corporation™).

ARTICLE Il
REGISTERED AGENT

The address of the registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 16192 Coastal
Highway, Lewes, Delaware 19965, Sussex County. The name of the registered agent of the
Corporation at such address is Harvard Business Services, Inc.

ARTICLE I
BUSINESS PURPOSE

The nature of the business or purposes 10 be conducted or promoted by the Corporation is to
engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”).

ARTICLE IV
CAPITAL STOCK

Section 4,01 Authorized Classes of Stock. The total number of shares of stock of all classes of
capital stock that the Corporation is authorized to issue is 265,217,402 consisting of three classes
of shares to be designated, respectfully, Class A Common Stock, and Class B Common Stock,
(collectively the Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common Stock are referred to herein as
“Common Stock™), and Preferred Stock. The total number of shares of Class A Common Stock
that this Corporation shall have the authority to issue shall be 40 shares, each with a par value of
$.0001. The total number of shares of Class B Common Stock that this Corporation shall have
the authority to issue shall be 260,400,162 shares, each with a par value of $.0001 per share. The
total number of shares of Preferred Stock that this corporation shall have the authority to issue is
4,817,200 shares, each with a par value $.0001.

Section 4.02 Common Stock.  The preferences, limitations, voting powers and relative rights




of the Class A Common Stock, and the Class B Common Stock (subject to the preferences and
rights of the Preferred Stock as determined by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 4.03 of
these Articles) are as follows:

(a) Voting Rights.

i. Except as otherwise required by law, as provided in this Certificate of
Incorporation, and as otherwise provided in the resolution or resolutions, if
any, adopted by the board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board of
Directors™) with respect to any series of the Preferred Stock, the holders of
Class A Common Stock shall vote together as a single voting group on all
matters submitted to a vote of this Corporation’s shareholders and holders
of Class A Common Stock shall exclusively possess all voting power.

ii. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these Articles or required
pursuant to DGCL., each holder of Class A Common Stock shall be entitled
to one (1) vote for each share of Class A Common Stock held as of the
applicable record date on any matter that is submitted to a vote of the
shareholders of this corporation (including, without limitation, any matter
voted on at a shareholders’ meeting); and

iii. Class B Common Stock shall be non-voting shares and, unless required by
law or authorized in this Certificate of Incorporation, shall not be entitled to
vote on matters submitted to a vote of this Corporation’s sharcholders.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, and in addition to any other vote required
by law, the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Non-
Voting Common Stock, voting separately as a class, shall be required to
amend. alter or repeal (including by merger, consolidation or otherwise) any
provision of these Articles of Incorporation that significantly and adversely
affects the powers, preferences or rights of the Non-Voting Common Stock
contained herein.

(b) Dividends and Distributions. Subject to the preferences applicable to any series of
Preferred Stock, if any. outstanding at any time, shares of Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock, Class shall be treated equally, identically and ratably, on a per
share basis, with respect to any Distribution as may be declared by the Board of Directors
from time to time with respect to the Common Stock, unless different treatment of the
shares of each such class is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority
of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock, the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, each voting separately as a separate voting
group: provided, however, that in the event any such Distribution declared by the Board
of Directors with respect to the Common Stock is paid in the form of Class A Common
Stock, Class B Common Stock (or Rights to acquire such class of stock), then holders of
Class A Common Stock shall receive Class A Common Stock (or Rights to acquire such
stock, as the case may be), and holders of Class B Common Stock shall receive Class B
Common Stock (or Rights to acquire such stock, as the case may be). Subject to the
preferences applicable to any series of Preferred Stock, the shares of Class A Common
Stock, and the shares of Class B Common Stock, are entitled to the net assets of this
corporation upon dissolution in accordance with the DCGL..




(©)

(d)

Subdivision or Combination. If this corporation in any manner subdivides or combines the
outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, the outstanding
shares of the other such class will be subdivided or combined in the same proportion and
manner, unless different treatment of the shares of each such class is approved by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A Common
Stock, and the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock,
each voting separately as a separate voting group.

Equal Status. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these Articles or required by
applicable law, shares of Class A Common Stock, and shares of Class B Common Stock,
shall have the same rights and privileges and rank equally, share ratably and be identical
in all respects as to all matters. Without {imiting the generality of the foregoing sentence,
in connection with a Change of Control Transaction, shares of Class A Common Stock,
and Class B Common Stock shall be treated equally, identically and ratably, on a per share
basis, with respect to any consideration into which such shares are converted or any
consideration paid or otherwise distributed in respect of such shares to shareholders of this
corporation, unless different treatment of the shares of each such class is approved by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A Common
Stock, and the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock,
cach voting separately as a separate voting group.

Section 4.03 Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors is hereby authorized to provide, out of
the unissued shares of Preferred Stock, for one or more series of Preferred Stock and, with respect
to each such series, to fix the number of shares constituting such series and the designation of such
series, the voting powers, if any, of the shares of such series, and the preferences and relative,
participating, optional, or other special rights, if any, and any qualifications, limitations, or
restrictions thereof, of the shares of such series, as shall be stated in the resolution or resolutions
providing for the issuance of such series adopted by the Board of Directors. The authority of the
Board with respect to each series of Preferred Stock shall include, but not be limited to,
determination of the following:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(¢)

(H

the designation of the series;
the number of shares of the series;

the dividend rate or rates on the shares of that series, whether dividends will be cumulative.
and if so, from which date or dates, and the relative rights of priority, if any, of payment
of dividends on shares of that series;

whether the series will have voting rights. generally or upon specified events, in addition
to the voting rights provided by law, and, if so, the terms of such voting rights;

whether the series will have conversion privileges. and, if so, the terms and conditions of
such conversion, including provision for adjustment of the conversion rate in such events
as the Board of Directors shall determine:

whether or not the shares of that series shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, at the
option of the Corporation or the holder thereof, and if made subject to such redemption,
the terms and conditions of such redemption, including the date or dates upon or after




which they shall be redeemable, and the amount per share payable in case of redemptions,
which amount may vary under different conditions and at different redemption rates:

(g) the terms and amount of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of the
shares of such series;

(h) the rights of the shares of that series in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, and the relative rights of priority, if any, of
payment of shares of that series;

i. the restrictions, if any, on the issue or reissue of any additional Preferred
Stock: and

ii, any other relative rights, preferences, and limitations of that series.

ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.01 General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed
by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 5.02 Number. Subject to any rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to
elect additional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors of the Corporation
shall be fixed from time to time solely by the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted
unanimously by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.03 Newly Created Directorships and Vacancies. Except as otherwise required by
law and subject to any rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect directors under
specified circumstances, any newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the
authorized number of directors and any vacancies occurring in the Board of Directors, shall be
filled solely by the affirmative votes of a majority of the remaining members of the Board of
Directors, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. A director so elected shall
be elected to hold office until the earlier of the expiration of the term of office of the director whom
he or she has replaced, a successor is duly elected and qualified, or the earlier of such director’s
death, resignation, or removal.

Section 5.04 Written Ballot. Unless and except to the extent that the By-Laws shall so require,
the election of directors of the Corporation need not be by written ballot,

Section 5.05. Removal. At a meeting of shareholders called expressly for that purpose, one or
more directors, including the entire Board of Directors, may be removed only for cause by the
holders of the shares entitled 1o elect the director or directors whose removal is sought if, with
respect to a particular director. the number of votes cast to remove the director exceeds the number
of votes cast to not remove the director.



ARTICLE V1
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

Section 6.01 Limitation of Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as it
presently exists or may hereafter be amended, a director of the Corporation shall not be personally
liable to the Corporation or to its stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary
duty as a director. No amendment to, modification of, or repeal of this Section 6.01 shall apply to
or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director of the Corporation for or with
respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment.

Section 6.02 Indemnification. The corporation shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted
by law as it presently exists or may hereafter be amended any person made or threatened to be
made a party to an action or proceeding, whether criminal, civil, administrative, or investigative,
by reason of the fact that he, his testator, or intestate is or was a director, officer, employee, or
agent of the Corporation or any predecessor of the Corporation. or serves or served at any other
enterprise as a director, officer. employee, or agent at the request of the Corporation or any
predecessor to the Corporation. Any amendment, repeal, or modification of this Section 6.02 shall
not adversely affect any right or protection hereunder of any person in respect of any act or
omission occurring prior to the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE VII
STOCKHOLDER ACTION

Section 7.01 Special Meetings of Stockholders. Except as otherwise required by law and
subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock. special meetings of the
stockholders of the Corporation shall be called only by: (i) the Board of Directors or the Chair of
the Board of Directors; or (ii) the Secretary of the Corporation, following receipt of one or more
written demands to call a special meeting of the stockholders from stockholders of record who
own, in the aggregate, at least 25% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of the Corporation
then entitled to vote on the matter or matters to be brought before the proposed special meeting
that complies with the procedures for calling a special meeting of the stockholders as may be set
forth in the By-Laws.

ARTICLE VIII
BY-LAWS

Section 8.01 Board of Directors. In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred
by law, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized and empowered to adopt, amend, alter, or
repeal the By-Laws without any action on the part of the stockholders,

Section 8.02 Stockholders. The stockholders shall also have the power to adopt, amend, alter,
or repeal the By-Laws; provided that, in addition to any affirmative vote of the holders of any
particular class or series of capital stock of the Corporation required by applicable law or this
Certificate of Incorporation, such adoption, amendment, alteration, or repeal shall be approved by
the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the voting power of the shares of the then
outstanding voting stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors,



ARTICLE X1
SAVINGS CLAUSE

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, being the incorporator, for the purpose of forming a corporation
pursuant to the DGCL, do make this Certificate of Incorporation, hereby acknowledging, declaring,
and certifying that the foregoing Certificate of Incorporation is my act and deed and that the facts
herein stated are true, and have accordingly hereunto set my hand this ) 5" day of
December 2021].

Incorporator:

Lerman LawsAssociates, PC

Y Lérman, its president




